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Corporate Profile
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Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRG”) on 28 December

2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s A shares were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company’s H shares
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It focuses on the manufacturing and sales of hydraulic roof
supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of and servicing for auto parts, as well as the trading of steel and other raw materials. The established operating history, high quality products,
strong research and development capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network of the Company and its subsidiaries are the
keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the coal mining and excavating equipment market and auto parts market.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased, on behalf of the board of directors (the
“Director(s)”) (the “Board”) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the period from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “2021 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Review Period”), the Company adhered to
the development strategy of “International Strategic Positioning, Market-oriented Corporate
Governance, High-end Industrial Structure, and Global Human Resources”, conscientiously
implemented the important instructions of General Secretary Xi Jinping during his visit
to ZMJ, continued to promote the optimization of governance structure, accelerated
the intelligent and digital transformation, strengthened technology and management
innovation, and strived to promote high-quality development of the enterprise, maintaining
a steady and positive development trend, and presenting the 100th anniversary of the CPC
with excellent results.

During the Review Period, the Group recorded total revenue of RMB29,293.53 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.46% and net profit attributable to shareholders
of the listed company of RMB1,947.79 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
57.19%.
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2021 Business Review

() Deepened the reform of systems and mechanisms
and set up aggressive goals to drive innovation and
development of the enterprise

1.

Completed mixed ownership reform of the Company and
the enterprise governance structure has become more
market-oriented

Under the guidance and support of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial
Government, HNMIC promoted a new round of mixed ownership
reform of ZMJ, and transferred 16% shares of ZMJ to Hong
Yi Investment by way of public solicitation of transferees, and
closed the transaction in February 2021. After the completion
of the transfer, Hong Yi Investment holds 16% shares of ZMJ,
and Hong Yi Investment and HNMIC become the first and
second largest shareholders of the Company, which would
enjoy a more diversified shareholding structure, a more market-
oriented operation mechanism of the shareholders’ meeting,
and a decision-making effect more in line with market rules.
This equity transfer is an important initiative of Henan Province’s
exploration of state-owned assets supervision efforts from
“management of people, matters and assets” to “management
of capital”, and an important attempt of HNMIC along with ZMJ
to implement the responsibility of state-owned enterprises and
“double-hundred action”, to deepen the conversion of business
mechanisms, and to explore means for the reform of state-
owned enterprises in Henan. It further optimizes the governance
structure of ZMJ and provides institutional guarantee for ZMJ
to build a world-class enterprise, and ZMJ has become the first
reform pilot project in Henan Province which is based on the
“management of capital” initiative.

After the completion of the mixed ownership reform, ZMJ also
completed the replacement of the board of directors, board
of supervisors and managers under the new shareholding
structure, and the members of the board of directors and board
of supervisors were jointly recommended by the two major
shareholders, forming a market-oriented board of directors
with highly efficient decision-making and effective checks and
balances, and established a more market-oriented governance
structure. The board of directors has become the decision-
making platform for each of the shareholders, administrative
approval is no longer carried out for major matters, and
voting for such matters is directly casted at the meetings of
shareholders and board of directors in accordance with the
Articles of Association, making decision-making more efficient
and market-oriented, enhanced the company’s governance
ability, better adapted to the fierce market competition of
globalization, and continuously adding momentum to corporate
development.
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Established a more market-oriented incentive and
restraint mechanism

In the process of the current mixed ownership reform, in order
to stimulate the enthusiasm and initiative of the core team
of the Company and share the interests and risks with the
shareholders, at the request of the strategic investors, the core
backbone of the Company contributed to form a shareholding
platform with the strategic investors to participate in this mixed
ownership reform and indirectly become the shareholders of the
Company, so as to gradually build a lifelong partner mechanism.

After the completion of this reform, with the support of
shareholders, ZMJ further improved and perfected the market-
oriented and internationalized salary incentive and assessment
and restraint mechanism, improved the performance appraisal
system of the group company, implemented the 2021
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme, completed the first exercise
under the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme, and stimulated
the endogenous development motivation of the Company.

Defined new development strategy and set up aggressive
goals to drive corporate development

Since 2021, under the background of “dual-carbon”
development, the new session of the Board of the Company has
put forward a higher business goal, clarified the development
goal of “50 billion in 5 years”, the development strategy of each
business segment for 5 to 10 years, and the practical planning
and development path for 5 years, as well as our grand vision
to build a world-class high-end smart equipment group leading
the Company to a high-quality and sustainable growth path with
a brand new mental outlook and full corporate vitality.

Fully implemented digital transformation strategy and
reconstructed core competitive advantages of the
enterprise

2021 is the first year of the Company’s digital transformation.
The Company regarded digital transformation as the “top
leader project” and the Group established a digital promotion
committee. Focusing on value creation, the Company initiated
digital transformation covering the entire process of sales,
technology, process, procurement, production, finance,
operation, and operation and maintenance services. With
replacing people with machines and greatly improving the
per capita efficiency as the focus, the Company continued to
promote the information collaboration of all segments of the
Group. In some key business nodes, the Company achieved
phased results, providing extensive application scenarios
for digital transformation, and laying a solid foundation for
promoting the digital transformation of the entire business
process.
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() Re-positioned each business segment to transform

towards intelligence, internationalization and
electrification

In 2021, in light of the new development trend, ZMJ re-positioned
the development strategies of various business segments around
the new medium to long-term development goals, determined to
transform the coal mining machinery segment into a supplier of
complete sets of comprehensive coal mining equipment, a service
provider providing full life cycle services and a data-based operator,
and ASIMCO transformed into an international and new energy
enterprise to improve the level of digital and automatic management;
SEG focused on profitability and growth to set foot on the electric
motor market and move to new energy and electrification.

1. The coal mining machinery segment further improved its
comprehensive strength with its operating results hitting
new highs again

In 2021, focusing on the annual operating policy of “cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement to ensure operation,
integration and innovation to expand differences, digital
transformation to promote upgrading, and smart complete-
set solution for market expansion”, guided by the principle
of “profitable orders, cash-inflow orders, and risk-controlled
orders”, the Company’s coal mining machinery segment
overcame the adverse impact of the pandemic at home and
abroad, seized high-quality orders and increased efforts in
collection of receivables. During the year, the coal mining
machinery segment increased by 22% year-on-year, and
collection of receivables increased by 29% year-on-year (both
excluding trade), both hitting a new high again. Order value of
complete-set products increased by 26% year-on-year, and
order value of smart products rose by 50% year-on-year. Total
annual production increased by 9% year-on-year, hitting a new
high since 2012.

20215 - EHABRIZBT - BREEERH—
WP RMERE R HEXBIRBAEREE
EITTEHMMIBE - B REIR SRR ELR
REEOMER -« IRE2 SRR &
BBRCHEE I - SHRIRBER(E - 3ee
REEL - R EEHFEMBECERAKT
REBEREEN  BEER  EARIDERD
15 - [AFEEEIR - SHNCED o

1 RERRGSBENE- SRR - XEBA
]

20214F + A B AR SR E 4 PR A IS R
L BERAIEER BT EAEA
T BEERERTSINFELE RS
I BFBERNETE - BRSTNTE - &
BXIMEIE | BER - RRERIMNEE
THRFE  BIEERE - MAREZKAN
B o EHMRIREFIIERLIGR2% -
ERRRLIER20%(HTEES) » 5
K- BFBEFS  KECERTESHE
FLLIER26% - HeetERF ERLIER
50% : EFAESFILLIERI% - £l20124F
LAZRH = ©



(1)

@

Focus on the main direction to devote precise efforts,
making new breakthroughs on market development

Regarding the domestic market, we sought stable, new
and progressive developments, and the main indicators
reached new highs. We further consolidated the
cooperative relationship with strategic customers such as
China Energy, Shaanxi Coal and Kailuan, and achieved
major breakthroughs in the emerging markets such as
Yanchang Petroleum, Panjiang, Huainan and the Yungui
region. The “trinity” marketing system of sales, design
and service was initially established, market planning
was normalized, and the way of return was diversified,
the annual bid-winning rate increased by 22.57% year-
on-year, and the cash return ratio was the best in recent
years.

Regarding the international market, we went upstream
and achieved breakthroughs in the high-end markets
again. We achieved the export of complete-set hydraulic
roof supports to Australia, landing on the highest stage
of international coal machinery; we won the complete-set
orders from Russia, entering the Russian market for the
first time for scrapers, and also entering the international
market for the first time for our electric control system
and centralized control center; our project in Turkey was
put into production efficiently, creating a precedent for
complete-set equipment from a single domestic enterprise
to successfully reach production stage abroad; we
overcame many unfavorable influences in the U.S. market
and obtained new orders for hydraulic roof supports.

Scientific and technological innovation aims at the
“bullseye” of demand, and drives the development of
complete sets with intelligence

Scientific and technological content determines market
capacity, the Company insists on “driving the development
of complete sets with intelligence”, coordinates internal
and external resources, concentrates R&D efforts
and strengthens the transformation of scientific and
technological achievements.

The promotion of intelligent products has been very
effective. The first set of Gigabit Ethernet roof support
electric control system of ZMJ equipped with “Kuang
Hong” system was applied in the well, which realized
the key technology of intelligent system of coal
mine comprehensive mining faces to be controlled
independently. The industrial Internet platform which
passed through third-party testing and evaluation has
access to over 100 intelligent mining working face,
basically possessed the capacity to support industrial
applications. In 2021, the market share of intelligent
mining faces promotion was 41%, ranking first steadily in
the industry.
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Steady progress of intelligent manufacturing. The overall
process planning and layout design of the structural parts
lighthouse factory was completed, and the development
and configuration of hardware and software facilities
continued to advance. The “6+1” MES system for the
production system was put into operation, and on the
basis of data collection, the analysis, application and
improvement of data were strengthened to steadily
improve production efficiency. Promoting informationization
and digitalization of technology and process, realized
automatic generation of standardised parts process and
efficient management of structured process.

The complete-set model is becoming more and more
mature. The new high-end standard for complete set
products was formulated, the platform of complete set
production system was established, the “in-plant joint
adjustment” became more and more perfect, the complete
set service was expanded in an orderly manner, and the
after-sales service system was further optimized.

Continuous breakthrough in technical innovation. We
successfully developed 10m hydraulic roof support
prototype, which was the peak of technology in coal
machine industry; we passed the acceptance of the
industry’s first “large expansion ratio (triple expansion)
hydraulic roof support”, the technical standards of
complete sets were upgraded and improved, various
technical innovations and improvement projects continued
to reduce costs and increase efficiency, and a total of 32
patents were authorized throughout the year.

2. The automotive parts segment maintained growth and
steadily transformed to the new energy field

During the Reporting Period, as the automobile market gradually
recovered, the Company’s automobile parts business continued
to improve, the commercial vehicle business continued to
grow, and the passenger vehicle business resumed growth.
SEG shifted its production capacity from Germany to Hungary.
ASIMCO’s smart manufacturing and capacity expansion projects
kicked off successively. The automotive segment was posed to
entering the new energy field.
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(1) ASIMCO launched intelligent manufacturing capacity

expansion project and Steadily promotes new energy
strategy

In 2021, ASIMCO renewed its best same-period
performance in overall revenue and profit. On the one
hand, it strengthened and optimized the existing business,
continued to maintain growth of core business, and seized
technology and market opportunities in the China VI
emission upgrading program. The smart manufacturing
and capacity expansion projects kicked off successively,
moving towards intelligent, digital, green and high-end
direction in an orderly manner.

ASIMCO Shuanghuan implements its high-end auto parts
intelligent manufacturing project with the orientation of
digitalization and automation, constructs high-end auto
parts (piston ring) production line, optimizes process
making, rapidly improves per capita work efficiency,
and expands ASIMCO Shuanghuan high-end piston ring
production capacity to meet current and future customer
needs; ASIMCO Shanxi implements ASIMCO Industrial
Technology (Yuncheng) Auto Parts Manufacturing Park
project with the “trinity” design principles of innovation,
intelligence and green, constructs high-end engine
block and cylinder head casting production line, creates
intelligent and green casting, and leads the transformation
and upgrading of the industry with the concepts of
intelligence, green and high-end.

On the other hand, it explored future transformation
and development strategies, promoted new business
development, accelerated the pace in developing
international market and after-sales market, investigated
and explored transformation and upgrading opportunities
in the field of new energy, strived to develop the market
of noise reduction and vibration reduction and sealing
products for new energy vehicles, successfully entered
the supply chain system of new energy customers such as
Xiaopeng, NIO, Dongfeng, Changan New Energy, BYD and
SF Motors, and obtained new energy seal and vibration
reduction projects from multiple customers. In 2021,
the new energy business directly or indirectly generated
sales revenue of over RMB77 million, and is expected to
maintain rapid growth in 2022.
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(2)  SEG realizes business restructuring to reduce costs and
losses, and actively transitions to electrification

SEG continued to promote business restructuring, carried
out adjustment and optimization of production layout.
SEG completed the restructuring of its European business
and factories, shifting starters, generator laboratories and
factories from Germany to Hungary, and its Spain factory
reached a restructuring agreement with the trade union;
SEG maintained and expanded its advantageous position
in the technology of energy saving and emission reduction
in internal combustion engines, upon completion, the
restructuring will significantly reduce costs.

Promoted the electrification strategy, invested in and set
up SEG Automotive Electric Systems Co., Ltd., gave full
play to its profound development capabilities, excellent
production processes and lean production capabilities
in motor hardware, software and system integration,
and provided the market with solutions with technical
advantages and cost competitiveness, comprehensively
transforming into the field of new energy-driven motors. At
present, the prototype of pure electric high-voltage drive
motors has been successfully tested. Despite the global
pandemic and the continuous decline in the automobile
industry, SEG achieved a turnaround in its operating
results in 2021.

Invest to assist the implementation of intelligent
strategy, Bestway Intelligent Control ChiNext IPO passed
the Listing Committee scrutinisation

In order to strengthen the Company’s layout in the intelligent
technology for coal mines, in 2020, the Company subscribed
for additional shares of Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control
Technology Co. Ltd. (“Bestway Intelligent Control”) for the
consideration of RMB112 million in cash, holding 8% of its
total share capital after the investment. The main products
of Bestway Intelligent Control are intelligent mine information
systems, as an important partner in the implementation of
the Company’s intelligent strategy, Bestway Intelligent Control
maintains a dominant position in terms of technology and
market in its subdivision. In 2021, Bestway Intelligent Control
continued to maintain a good development situation, with annual
revenue and profit maintaining good growth. In 2021, the
application for listing on ChiNext of Shenzhen Stock Exchange
was approved by the ChiNext Listing Committee in December
2021, and the application has now been submitted to the
China Securities Regulatory Commission for registration. The
investment brings industrial synergy and capital appreciation
for the Company, and is a successful attempt of the Company’s
capital-empowered industrial chain.
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4. Zhima Street Entrepreneurship and Innovation Project
continued to promote investment attraction and image
improvement

Zhima Street continued to promote the “Zhima Street 1958
Innovation and Entrepreneurship Park Project” focused on the
transformation and upgrading of the Company’s old plants,
and developed and revitalized idle plants with the theme of
“Scientific Innovation + Cultural innovation”. In 2021, Zhima
Street 1958 Innovation and Entrepreneurship Park, as a branch
of the National Mass Entrepreneurship and Innovation Week,
held a number of themed events as an important innovation and
entrepreneurship participation point, which further enhanced
its popularity and influence, and was fully recognized by the
national ministries and commissions, provincial and municipal
officials.

(Ill) Strived to fight against the pandemic and the flood

to ensure stable development of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Company actively organized the
fight against the severe rainstorm disaster in Zhengzhou, strictly
implemented the requirements of the government authorities for
flood control and disaster relief work, built a smooth information
communication channel, actively carried out flood control work,
put the safety of employees in the first place, and ensured the
safety of employees and equipment. At the same time, we did not
forget our own corporate responsibility, and help the post-disaster
reconstruction by donating supplies to the severely affected areas
and donating RMB1 million to the Charity Federation of Zhengzhou
Economic and Technological Development Zone.

The Company effectively enhanced the sense of responsibility for
epidemic prevention and control, continued to do a good job in
the prevention of imported cases and the normalization of internal
prevention of resurgence of the epidemic, and made solid efforts in
personnel management and control, vaccination and other related
work, so as to protect the safety and health of all employees of the
Company and build a healthy and safety barrier for the operation and
development of the Company.
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(V) Strengthened investor protection and effectively

fulfilled social responsibility

In 2021, the Company further enhanced its awareness of
standardized operations, continuously improved its corporate
governance structure and promoted healthy and sustainable
development in strict accordance with the requirements of the
Company Law, the Securities Law, the Code on Governance of Listed
Companies and other relevant laws, regulations and regulatory
documents. In strict accordance with relevant laws and regulations,
the Company performs its information disclosure obligations in a true,
accurate, timely and complete manner, and continues to enhance
the effectiveness of investor communication through a multi-channel
investor communication system, which is mainly disclosed through
statutory information disclosure media and supplemented by the
Company’s official website, WeChat public account, investor hotline,
email and SSE e-interactive, to effectively safeguard the interests of
shareholders and small and medium-sized investors.

The Company insists on rewarding investors with cash dividends
and completed the profit distribution plan for 2020, distributing cash
dividends of RMB2.099 (including tax) for every 10 shares to all
shareholders based on the total share capital on the share registration
date, with a total profit distribution of about RMB373 million, sharing
the business outcomes of the company’s development with all
shareholders by continuously payment of cash dividends since its
listing.
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Industry landscape and trends

The Central Economic Work Conference clarified that in 2022, China
will continue to adhere to the general tone of seeking progress while
maintaining stability and the main line of supply-side structural reform,
focus on stabilizing the macro-economy, and maintain the economic
operation within a reasonable range.

() Coal mining machinery industry

According to the Guiding Opinions on High-quality Development of
the Coal Industry for the 14th Five Years issued by the China National
Coal Association, by the end of 14th Five Years, domestic coal output
should be controlled at approximately 4.1 billion tonnes, and national
coal consumption should be controlled at approximately 4.2 billion
tonnes, with an average annual growth of approximately 1%. The
number of coal mines in China should be controlled at around 4,000,
with more than 1,000 intelligent mining working faces built and the
mechanization level of coal mining around 90%.

The Central Economic Work Conference pointed out that it is
necessary to recognize the basic conditions that our energy
resources are dominated by coal, do a good job in clean and efficient
utilization of coal, increase the capacity of new energy consumption,
and promote the optimization of the combination of coal and new
energy. Coal will be one of the main energy sources in China in the
long run. In recent years, the State has successively issued policies
including the Catalogue of Key R&D Projects of Coal Mine Robot, the
National Energy Technology Innovation Action Plan (2016-2030),
the Guiding Opinions on Accelerating Intelligent Development of Coal
Mines and the Guidelines for Intelligent Development of Coal Mines,
coupled with the introduction of supporting policies in major coal-
producing regions, which is conducive to promoting safe, efficient
and intelligent mining and clean and efficient intensive utilization of
coal, and has set a clear direction for the construction of intelligent
mines. It is expected that coal mines will step into a period of rapid
development in the next 5-10 years, and the demand for high-
reliability intelligent and green coal machinery equipment by coal
enterprises will further increase, and enterprises will usher in new
development opportunities.
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(I) Automobile industry

With the full implementation of the China VI emission standards
and the tightening of fuel consumption limits year by year, the
traditional automobile market structure and product structure will
be adjusted in a faster pace. As fiscal subsidy policies fade out and
the trading mechanism of carbon credits and new energy credits is
adopted, the new energy vehicle industry will become more market-
driven in a faster pace. According to the Development Plan of New
Energy Automobile Industry (2021-2035), the sales volume of
new energy vehicles will account for approximately 20% by 2025,
which will further promote the high-quality development of the new
energy automobile industry. Electrification, networking, intelligence
and sharing will become the development trend of the automobile
industry. The “Energy-saving and New Energy Vehicle Technology
Roadmap 2.0” issued by the Society of Automotive Engineers of
China proposes that hybrid electric vehicles will account for more
than 50% of traditional energy passenger vehicles by 2025. Full
electrification will drive a high degree of integration between the
industry chains of energy-saving and new energy vehicles.

In 2022, against the backdrop of steady growth of the domestic
macro-economy and various national and local measures to
promote the high-quality development of the automobile industry,
the overall automobile market in 2022 will continue to maintain a
stable and positive trend. The total sales volume of automobiles in
China is expected to reach 27.5 million units in 2022, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 5%. Among them, new
energy vehicles will reach 5 million units, representing a year-on-
year increase of 42%, and the market share is expected to exceed
18%. The number of new vehicle models developed by traditional
carmakers will decrease, the high-end vehicle market and new
energy vehicle market will have greater growth potential, and the
leading effect of the automobile industry will become more obvious.
On the other hand, the automobile market still faces great challenges:
the market competition is becoming increasingly fierce, and the order
price is stabilising after a rapid decline; At the same time, customers
have higher requirements for lead time, technical performance and
quality.
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With the release of new energy development plans by many
automobile companies around the world, more technology firms
have begun to march into the field of new energy vehicles, making
the automobile industry continue to become more digital, more
intelligent and greener, promoting sustainable development of
global transportation, and facilitating green recovery of economies.
However, the COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical conflicts and other
factors will continue to impact the global automobile industry, making
the industry more complicated.

In the upstream of the automobile industry, the automobile parts
and components industry is the foundation for the development of
the automobile industry. The Company will continue to explore the
passenger vehicle market, steadily expand into the commercial
vehicle market, vigorously explore the new energy market, actively
provide customers with high-quality products and services, and
enhance its market competitiveness in various aspects.

lll. Outlook for Future Developments

()

Development Strategy

Adhering to the development concept of “technology changes the
world, intelligence leads the future”, and with the vision of “becoming
a world influential business group in high-end intelligent equipment
research and development, manufacturing and service”, the
Company has determined the development goal of “50 billion in 5
years” and the development strategy of each business segment for
5-10 years, so as to promote the Company to take the path of high-
quality and sustainable development with a new spirit and full vitality.

1. Deeply develop the coal mining machinery segment
based on current conditions with eyes on the future

The coal mining machinery segment adheres to the principle
of “intelligent-driven product complete-set development and
digital-driven business whole process transformation”, and
continues to lead the development of the coal mining machinery
equipment manufacturing industry. With the development
direction of complete sets, intelligence, internationalization and
socialization, the Company will ramp up inputs into research
and development, establish a big data service platform, and
realize services such as data analysis, intelligent push and
continuous upgrading of software, so as to meet customers’
demand for “service experience” from focusing on “equipment
itself”, promote the development of coal mining towards green,
intelligent, efficient and safe development, and build the
Company into a supplier of complete sets of comprehensive
coal mining equipment, a service provider providing full life
cycle and a data-based operator.
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Accelerate the transformation of the auto parts segment
amid the wave of electrification

The wave of electrification of automobiles has brought
dramatic changes to the industry, and the transformation of
the Company’s automotive parts and components segment is
imperative.

As regards ASIMCO, on the one hand, it shall continue
to maintain the continuous growth of its core business with
competitive advantages and increase its market share.
Deeply promote digital and intelligent manufacturing, improve
operational efficiency, reach ultimate perfection for traditional
products, achieve internationalisation swiftly and reduce costs
swiftly. On the other hand, carry out new energy transformation,
continue to develop new energy auto vibration and noise
reduction parts business, and at the same time expand
business fields to promote ASIMCQ’s transformation from parts
to components and even system integration, from domestic
business-oriented to internationalisation, and from traditional
auto parts to energy saving and new energy business.

As regards SEG, it shall focus on profitability and growth,
achieve rapid transformation towards new energy business.
Accelerate its move into the new energy-driven motor market,
backed by SEG Automotive e-Drive System Company Ltd., focus
on the development and manufacturing of new energy vehicle
motor electric control system, based on China, developing
Chinese business and radiating the world, to establish a global
first-class automotive electrification system solution provider.

Focus on emerging areas and strive to develop new
businesses

Grasp the new industrial opportunities in the context of “dual-
carbon”. While doing a good job in the existing segments, the
Company will unswervingly enter into new fields and develop
new businesses, adhere to the principle of “leaving the industry
without leaving the profession” and pay more attention to the
business opportunities in new energy, high-tech equipment and
intelligent equipment industry.

Leverage the power of capital to promote high-quality
development

Actively study capital market policies, incubate relevant
businesses under our control to move independently towards
the capital market, make full use of the flexibility, inclusiveness
and liquidity of the capital market to increase the Group’s
excess earnings, expand its scale and enhance the value of its
investments.
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Accelerate digital transformation and enhance new
development momentum

Digital transformation is the main theme of the Company in
the next 5-10 years. The key is to replace manual labor with
machines and digitalisation, improve per capita work efficiency,
and help energy saving and emission reduction. We will promote
the digital upgrade at all levels of the Company, promoting
interconnection and collaboration among multiple segments and
businesses, building a digital enterprise, and empowering high-
quality development with digital and intelligent technology.

() Business Plan for 2022

1.

Continue to promote business reform and become a
smart high-end equipment manufacturer with global
influence

(1) Coal mining machinery business

Guided by the annual policy of “innovation-driven,
intelligence-driven, reform and efficiency improvement,
and complete-set and high-end”, the Company will better
meet customer needs and accelerate implementation
of the four strategies of “complete-sets, intelligent,
international and social”.

Innovation driven. First, marketing innovation.
To provide customers with precise insight into their
needs and provide them with a package of financial,
product and service solutions, promoting the company’s
transformation from a single manufacturer to a “complete-
set + technology + service” one-stop solution provider.
Second, innovation in research and development.
Strengthen the planning of scientific and technological
research and development, focus on our core technology
of coal mine comprehensive mining face, expand
horizontally and improve vertically, strengthen the forward-
looking layout of strategic areas, gradually master the
smart mine and expand the core technology of non-coal
related businesses, and establish multi-level technical
research and development strength. Third, innovation
in institutional mechanism. The Company has
implemented a competitive appointment process for
the middle level management and managed the basic
level management in accordance with the “four systems
of cadres”, formulated and implemented incentive
schemes in accordance with the long-term high targets,
strengthened the mechanism for achieving performance
targets and transferring pressure to the middle, high and
basic level, and promoted the reform of mixed ownership
of relevant subsidiaries to empower their development.
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Intelligence driven. First, smart products. Accelerate
the development and upgrading of key technologies and
the promotion and application of intelligent products,
accelerate the integration of “two machines and one roof
support” systems at the mining face, unify standards
and structures and build them into the company’s
technical advantages, strengthen the breakthrough of
high-performance and high-reliability technology and
equipment, the development of an intelligent collaborative
control platform, and the study of planned mining at
transparent mining face. Improve the company’s industry
influence and market competitiveness. Secondly,
intelligent manufacturing. According to the path of
informatization-digitalization-intelligence, we will carry out
the construction of digital factory, apply digital technology
to the whole life cycle of products, the whole value chain
and all aspects of enterprise operation and management,
and build the “four strategies” supported by digitalization.

Reform and efficiency improvement. First,
production reform. With the goal of maximizing
overall output and efficiency, we will deeply promote
the restructuring and adjustment of production
methods, and gradually realize social division of labour,
specialized manufacturing and specialized supporting.
Second, efficiency improvement. The development
of digitalisation is to reduce manpower and improve
efficiency and enhance customer satisfaction. Through
digital promotion, we will promote the transformation of
digital-information-knowledge-wisdom, carry out business
empowerment and drive all-factor efficiency improvement.

Complete-set and high-end. First, technology for
complete sets. Accelerate the development of a series
of high-end intelligent complete sets of coal mining
units, increase the research and development of key
technologies and key components for complete sets, and
promote the transformation of physical complete sets to
system complete sets and complete sets under intelligent
integration. Second, complete sets of sales. Grasp the
needs of key customers, give full play to the advantages
of intelligence, carry out marketing planning for complete
sets, and make greater breakthroughs in high-end
customers; vigorously train a group of complete set project
managers (sales, design and service), co-ordinate internal
and external resources, and implement one-stop services.
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Automotive parts business

First, continue to consolidate and enhance our
dominant position in our core business. Reach
ultimate perfection for traditional products, achieve
internationalisation swiftly and reduce costs swiftly.
Complete the restructuring of ASIMCO’s governance
structure to create good conditions for ASIMCO’s rapid
development; promote the completion and production of
ASIMCO Shuanghuan and ASIMCO Shanxi’s high-end
auto parts manufacturing projects, achieve headcount
reduction and efficiency improvement with digital and
automated factories, expand the core business advantages
from domestic to global, and lead the transformation and
upgrading of the industry; SEG shall continue to push
forward the business integration after restructuring, strive
to increase market share, reduce costs and increase
efficiency, and enhance profitability.

Second, rapid development of new energy business.
Through R&D investment, alliance cooperation, capital
operation and other means to rapidly develop our new
energy business. ASIMCO shall concentrate its resources
on vigorous development of new energy vibration and
noise reduction market, while exploring transformation
and development opportunities to promote other potential
projects. SEG shall rapidly promote the development and
application of high-voltage drive motors, striving to obtain
customer project fixing, and promote the comprehensive
transformation of the automotive parts business to energy
conservation, emission reduction and new energy, and the
transformation from parts to components and even system
integration.

Focus on emerging areas and strive to develop new
businesses

Grasp new industrial opportunities in the context of “dual-
carbon”, actively explore new areas and develop new
businesses, pay more attention to “new energy, high-tech
equipment, intelligent equipment” and other industries,
and planning on new industries facing the future to
achieve sustainable development.
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Rapidly promote digital transformation and enhance new
development momentum

The digital transformation of enterprises is the trend of the
times, and the competition among enterprises in the future
must be digital competition. In accordance with the goal of
“doubling the work efficiency per capita in five years”, we will
formulate a digital transformation plan and roadmap, clarify the
direction, goals and priorities of the transformation, and outline
our blueprint and vision. With the construction of strategic
finance, intelligent finance and lighthouse factories as the main
elements, we will accelerate digitalisation, unleash the potential
of data and build global competitiveness. Establish a cross-
departmental implementation team to collaboratively promote
the implementation of digital transformation, carry out digital
knowledge learning and practice, and enhance the digital
awareness of all staff; implement the digital transformation
leadership responsibility system, establish the sense of digital
transformation among all staff, clarify efficiency improvement
targets and tasks, and strive to achieve the integration of
digital products with manufacturing digitalisation and service
digitalisation, the integration of internal and external related
parties, and the integration of digital with specific businesses.

Form an investment platform and hunt for new profit
growth

Study carefully flexible investment mechanisms and methods in
industrial investment, financial investment and stock investment
to create new profit growth points. In the context of the policy
of Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutral, we will make use of the
investment company platform to innovate business models,
actively explore and expand the Group’s business areas, further
enhance the Group’s competitiveness and profitability, and
achieve a healthy complementarity between industrial operation
and capital operation to realize the sustainable and stable
development of the Company.
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Enhance comprehensive risk management with better
emergency management capabilities

The Company will do a good job in normalized epidemic
prevention and control, further improve the Company’s ability
to prevent and respond to various emergencies, improve the
Company’s emergency management mechanism, regularly
organize training and emergency drills to improve the awareness
and skills of all employees to respond to emergencies.

The establishment of a scientific, professional, stable and
effective risk management system is a strong management
support for governance decision-making and sustainable
development of the Company. The Company will further improve
its risk management system, give full play to the functions of
the Board of Supervisors, internal audit, internal control and
disciplinary inspection and supervision functions, and form
joint supervision to ensure the legal compliance of corporate
operations and asset safety, and serve the realization of its
strategic goals.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere

gratitude to the

entire staff, shareholders, clients and partners of the Company.

Jiao Chengyao

Chairman

28 March 2022
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Review of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group achieved sales revenue
of RMB29,293.53 million, representing an increase of 10.46% from the
corresponding period of last year. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
was RMB1,947.79 million, representing an increase of 57.19% from the
corresponding period of last year. Earnings per share was RMB1.12. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had borrowing balances of RMB5,798.61 million.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
and auto parts manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history,
high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. With the completion of ASIMCO and
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH acquisition, the Group has duly entered the
auto parts market and is engaged in two principal businesses, namely coal
mining machinery and auto parts.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year ended 31 December

2021 indicated, of our consolidated results of operations.

RERE

TREIIAEBRFREE2021F12A31 H IEFE L

BRERERE -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB millions RMB millions
AR¥EER ARKEBETT
Revenue WA 29,293.53 26,519.39
Cost of sales SHE KA (23,055.47) (20,218.74)
Gross profit EF 6,238.06 6,300.65
Other income Hublg A 385.25 262.82
Other gains and losses HAtnlzs &5 1E (3.58) (393.01)
Selling and distribution expenses THE ko R (828.13) (790.49)
Administrative expenses TR (1,284.32) (1,289.83)
Research and development expenses i g ==z (1,437.96) (1,224.43)
Restructuring costs EFEID®N (210.84) (646.95)
Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets RN EREEREEEFHE (16.53) (0.34)
Share of profit of associates i AN vl 39.42 12.01
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(LEEDEST 5.64 9.62
Finance costs, net RS AR AN FEE (263.69) (300.16)
Profit before tax MREL BTG R 2,623.32 1,939.89
Income tax expense FriSHiR > (553.45) (561.11)
Profit for the year FEREFR 2,069.87 1,378.78
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AT FREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NEI )3 1,947.79 1,239.15
Non-controlling interests eI 122.08 139.63
2,069.87 1,378.78
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Results of Operations (Continued) RS
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB miillions RMB millions
AREEET ARBEETT
Other comprehensive income: Hih2mEK -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to "BRAEEF S IEE 185
profit or l0ss: EE -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations BT ERKRENERE 70.56 21.08
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value NAEEBEEEHTARLME
through other comprehensive income Az EmEEATEE 2.76 (0.94)
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJEEER DI BB -
Exchange differences arising on translation WMEEANEY Z58 24.53 (119.89)
Cash flow hedging WEmEE T (12.56) (4.96)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, FREMEEYRE(FX) 0%
net of income tax FriSti 85.29 (104.71)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEWKFLEE 2,155.16 1,274.07
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATEEFAZEKRELE !
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VNN S 2,033.07 1,134.44
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A 122.09 139.63
2,155.16 1,274.07
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —ERARES) 112.42 71.52
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#EARESD) 111.90 71.45
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Revenue A

Our revenue increased by 10.46% from RMB26,519.39 million for the year AEBBABRBE2020F12A3NBEFEHNARE
ended 31 December 2020 to RMB29,293.53 million for the year ended 31 26,519.39F B JTIE IN10.46% & £2021F12 B31 B IFF
December 2021, mainly because manufacture of coal mining machinery EMAREE29,29353B 8T - EE AN ELE R
segment’s sales increased for the year ended 31 December 2021. DERHERE E2021F 12318 IEFE A FTIEM -

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and TRETIRNEBIRE @R EBE D WA (B -
business (in RMB millions): AREEET) :

Year ended 31 December 2021
BZE2021F12ANBILEE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of

machinery auto parts Total
BUERERWN  RESESIMN #5t
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
ARBBEET AR¥EER AREBEERT

Sales of auto parts RETEEREE - 16,080.41 16,080.41
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TRIER S B SHE 6,873.99 - 6,873.99
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $f#] 52 B 4th R 5 iU A 3,730.77 75.69 3,806.46
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery EEREEILED HE 856 2,202.97 - 2,202.97
Sales of other coal mining equipment H R Em e 155.52 - 155.52
Other revenue E A 119.84 54.34 174.18

13,083.09 16,210.44 29,293.53

Year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020F12A31 A ILFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERIERE,  BERETEM #aEt
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

ARBEET ARBBEST ARBBEST

Sales of auto parts RETEREE - 14,914.67 14,914.67
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIS BERSHE 7,213.59 - 7,213.59
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $$8; & E-4th R R 5 B U A 2,695.29 62.99 2,658.28
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery B FE i Be (- 8054 & 1,490.46 - 1,490.46
Sales of other coal mining equipment H R L EEE 77.05 - 77.05
Other revenue Ha A 118.58 46.76 165.34

11,494.97 15,024.42 26,519.39
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Cost of Sales

As the Group recorded an increase in our revenue, our cost of sales increased
by 14.03% from RMB20,218.74 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to RMB23,055.47 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit decreased by 0.99% from
RMB6,300.65 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB6,238.06
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The change in gross profit during the year primarily comprised of comprised of
the increase of raw materials price. The gross profit margin of the coal mining
machinery segment decreased from 34.8% for the year ended 31 December
2020 to 27.2% for the year ended 31 December 2021. As of 31 December
2021, the gross profit margin of the auto parts segment of the Group increased
from 15.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Therefore, the overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 23.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 21.3% for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 46.58% from RMB262.82 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB385.25 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, mainly because the Group gained more government grants
and interest income.

Other Gains and Losses

Our other gains and losses decreased by 99.09% from loss of RMB393.01
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to loss of RMB3.58 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, primarily as a result of the decrease of
impairment of property, plant and equipment, impairment of goodwill and net
foreign exchange loss.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 4.76% from RMB790.49
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB828.13 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which was align with the increase of revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses kept flat in 2021, with only 0.43% decrease
compared with 2020.
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Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs decreased slightly by 2.24% from RMB3,693.39 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB3,610.84 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic
salary and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating
results of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees.
The Group adheres to the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as
the focus on top-tier staff. It also strives to ensure scientific and reasonable
allocation of income.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses increased by 17.44% from
RMB1,224.43 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB1,437.96
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to more research
and development activities incurred from manufacture of coal mining machinery
segment during the year.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs decreased by 12.15% from RMB300.16 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB263.69 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, due to the decrease of interest from the repayment of
redemption liabilities during the year.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 35.23% from RMB1,939.89 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to RMB2,623.32 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 1.37% from RMB561.11 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB553.45 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, primarily as a result of the changes in R&D expenses
deduction rate. Our effective tax rate decreased to 21.10% for the year ended
31 December 2021 from 28.92% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Total comprehensive income for the year

In view of the combined effect of the above factors, our profit for the year
and the aggregate of comprehensive income increased by 69.16% from
RMB1,274.07 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB2,155.16
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 57.19% from RMB1,239.15 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to RMB1,947.79 million for the year ended 31 December
2021,

Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2021, trade and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB7,374.07 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB382.16 million as compared to approximately RMB6,991.91 million as at
the end of 2020, the increase of trade and other receivables mainly due to the
increase of revenue.

Liquidity

The Group’s net current assets were approximately RMB12,844.18 million
(31 December 2020: RMB10,275.74 million) and the current ratio was 1.85
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: 1.69). The increase in current

ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in trade and other receivables and
inventories.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had RMB3,195.67 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.
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HE2021F12A31H - AEEHAHE RS EEMA
R¥3195678ETL c AEBERS MRS EEBYEER
RS RRITER -

2021 2020

20215 20204F

RMB millions RMB millions

ARSBET AREBET

Net cash from operating activities REEBNFT5IR S FEE 2,494.53 2,123.41
Net cash used in investing activities WA EREFTEIR S F5E (1,559.31) (4,345.53)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities MEES(FR),FEIHEFE (606.56) 1,503.38

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Re MRS ORd)

HRE 328.66 (718.74)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREHHF L (111.72) (165.97)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year REYHEE RIRSEEY 2,978.73 3,863.44
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year NERNEESRIRESEEY 3,195.67 2,978.73
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Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2021 was RMB2,494.53 million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB2,623.32 million,
primarily adjusted for: (i) finance cost of RMB263.69 million; (i) depreciation
of property, plant and equipment of RMB671.36 million, (iii) increase in
inventories of RMB1,727.59 million, (iv) increase in trade and other receivables
of RMB316.79 million, (v) increase in trade and other payables of RMB533.68
million, (vi) increase in notes receivable of RMB305.95 million, (vii) increase in
contract liabilities of RMB663.14 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash outflow in investing activities in 2021 was RMB1,559.31 million,
primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB1,032.55 million for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment; (i) withdrawal of bank deposits with
original maturity over three months of RMB1,789.74 million; (jii) payment of
RMB3,234.99 million for structured deposits; (iv) proceeds of RMB2,744.01
million from structured deposits; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of
RMB374.27 million; (vi) withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB973.55
million. (vii) placement of bank deposits with original maturity over three months
and restricted cash of RMB2,569.83 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities in 2021 was RMB606.56 million, primarily
consisting of (i) cash inflow from borrowing of RMB2,399.13 million; (i) cash
outflow from the repayment of borrowings in the amount of RMB945.00 million;
and (jii) cash outflow from the repayment of redemption liabilities in the amount
of RMB1,425.87 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB1,124.54 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets.

REER

F20214F - EB TSRS FEAARK2494538
B BeRAETZERERTAEFARYE2623.328
BT EZFRT  ()BENERARE26369EE T (i)
ME - BENRETEARBIEETT  (i)fFEE
INARKA72750BE T+ (WE 5 K H b EUGRIAE i1
ARBESI679HETT - WE SR EMEMNIBIEMAR
#533.68 EE T ¢ (vi)FELRRIBIG A RIE305.95E & T
viya R B EEMmAREE63 148 ET °

REEE

20215 - WEEEIR &M FEAARK559.31H
B XERE: (\RBEDE  BELEHNIH
AR®E1,03255B & 7T ¢ (NREUREEIE =@ AU £/
RITHERARE78974E BT ¢ (i TEEETFHRA
R¥32349F 8L WEBETRASHRBBARE
27400 BEL  WEHEEFRITFRARE7427H
B (R EIFIRITFRARKI7355EHEIT ¢ (vil
FREZHE A=A EMRITEREZRHRS A
R#2569.83EH 7T °

BEEE)

20214 - BB EB TR FEAAREG06.56 &
T EEBE ()EEMRSEAARK2399135E8
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2021, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized
and contracted for in the amount of RMB857.98 million.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised
notes receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

AERBAREE
AV

BHZE2021F12A318 - XEBRFREAWEME - HE
RENEREBETANERAEARKS7.8EE

ﬁo

HANBIE

RAREE - AEEDEERKEERE TRKEE -

EEAESPMERENZE S REMENFIE - AREEE

RAE - HRECEERKEEABER NP BT

B RIRHER - IR EEERKREENRABRTK -

REREHR - AEBAEEARTZEEERKIEHER
R W E /BRI ESRARBRLIT

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB millions RMB millions
AREBEET AREBET

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse HEBREOMARERDREE

LS

2,133.20 2,694.30
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Working Capital and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2021 (in RMB millions):

CEETRAE

BEML - ARKBST)

TREIEE2021F12 AN BAEERBDEE N AEF

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET ARBEETT
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion RERERWHIE - REE S 42.12 122.83
Long-term receivables, current portion REAFEUIE » RENEE D 30.32 156.94
Loan receivables from associates and a joint venture R R AR R —EAEDER
BR = 6.50
Inventories wE 6,242.41 4,531.79
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW IR 7,374.08 6,991.91
Transferred trade receivables EEEMNE Z ERGIE 687.47 830.94
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AT EANE B EES A
BaemEE 3,236.29 2,857.31
Financial assets at fair value through other LARFEEAE B HES A
comprehensive income HirmkENesEE 4,111.05 3,780.07
Derivative financial instruments PTAESRIE 15.37 40.41
Tax recoverable A U B 55 18 43.67 34.70
Contract related assets, current portion & RABRAE E CREE D) = 8.80
Bank deposits IRITIER 2,944.10 2,763.29
Cash and cash equivalents Ee RIREZEEY 3,195.67 2,978.73
27,922.55 25,104.22
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables E 5 R EMFERRIE 9,978.41 8,523.82
Contract liabilities AaREAaE 2,272.37 1,625.44
Income tax liabilities FissiasE 132.29 231.90
Borrowings ==Y 1,167.95 974.00
Lease liabilities HERE 103.22 114.98
Redemption liabilities BOEE - 1,420.88
Provisions B 687.34 1,092.79
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables HEEENE ZEWFIEE BN
8E 687.47 830.94
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 49.32 13.73
15,078.37 14,828.48
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 12,844.18 10,275.74

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of approximately HZE2021FE128310 - AEBRHEEFEHNAARK
RMB12,844.18 million (31 December 2020: RMB10,275.74 million) and 12,844.18 8 & L (202012 A31H « AR¥10,275.748
current ratio of 1.85 (31 December 2020: 1.69). The increase in current ratio BT MREEA1.85(2020%F12831H :1.69) ° 7t
was mainly attributable to the increase in inventories and financial assets. R A TFTEARFERSREEEMTE -
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Working Capital and Indebtedness (Continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the balance of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was RMB5,798.61 million, of which RMB1,167.95 million are current portion (31
December 2020: outstanding borrowings was RMB4,598.90 million, of which
RMB974.00 million was current portion).

As of 31 December 2021, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB26,092 million. As of 31 December 2021,
approximately RMB19,549 million of our credit lines from various domestic and
foreign financial institutions remained unused.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Debt to capital ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities at the end of the
year by total equity at the end of the year and multiplying by 100%.

As of 31 December 2021, our debt to capital ratio was 139% (31 December
2020: 146%).
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A

gEEEREE®

HZE2021F12A318 - AEEREEREHEAAR
#5798 61 B BT - HPRBIHH BARKE1167.958 8
JC(2020F12A31H « KMEEEBEEAARK4L598908E
TC HAREEn AAREKE740085ETT)

HZE2021F12A318 - AEEERBEZRSAEEN
AIREEEEARKE26,0925 BT » #E2021412 A31
A AEBERAZRERIINGBIEBENEEEEOAR
K19549 B BT AR ©

EXRELR

BEREBEARLENRFRAGRRER AT RERREE -
BIE100%TE -

BHZE2021F12A318 - AEBERKEE AR E A139%
(20205F12 A31H : 146%) °

Liquidity Risk MENE E R
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to 1yearto 2yearsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cashflows amount
IEEH RERS, FRHS
FE  OWMER  MEREIE 1ERE 2ERGE REBE REE
RMBmilions ~ RMBmilons ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmillions ~ RMBmillions ~ RMB millions
AREBEL AREBER AREAER ARWREL AREKEET AREKBER
The Group by |
As at 31 December 2021 2021412431
Non-derivative financial liabilties HiEsHERE
Trade and other payables BAREMEMNTIE 7,838.88 2,139.63 - - 9,978.41 9,978.41
Liabilties associated with transferred 57 IS A0E 5 feltzuE
{rade receivables BENEE 5745 630.02 - - 687.47 687.47
Borrowings EE 251 174.31 1,174.82 381277 889.09 6,050.99 5,798.61
Lease liabilities REakE 372 26.31 129.33 2031 1,135.64 1,494.39 1,246.07
Derivative financial liabiities ITEERERE
Designated as hedging instruments ~ $5E B4R T A 1.96 14.37 - - 16.33 16.33
Not designated as hedging instruments g2 AR T A 10.75 2.2 - - 33.00 33.00
8,109.66 4110.32 4,015.88 2,024.73 18,260.59 17,759.89
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative assets, loan receivable
from associates and a joint venture, pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group placed them in
or entered into the contract with banks with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and an appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorization of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business of manufacture of coal
mining machinery, the Group generally receives advances in the form of notes
receivable or cash from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract
price) before delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts, normally a
credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognized certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment of
the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable are
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

FEERE
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11 REEWFOR - SRR - TEEE - RIS
RAEAR—HAEREEER  BERRTER B KkR
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 1R E

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate borrowings (see Note 34 for details). Currently, the Group does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Group’s interest risk.

Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various non-functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is primarily with
respect to non-functional currency bank balances, receivables, borrowings and
payables (collectively “Non-Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
certain foreign currency exposure by using foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between USD/RMB,
EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statement
prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the Group’s
currency risk.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Jiao Chengyao (£ 2Z), male, was born in May 1963 in Gongyi County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a professor-level senior engineer with
postgraduate qualifications. He graduated from China Institute of Mining and
Technology (4 E#E 2 22F5%) (now known as China University of Mining and
Technology (F B A% 3 A 22)), majoring in mechanical design, manufacture
and automation, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985.
He obtained a master’s degree in engineering from China University of Mining
and Technology in December 2003, and a doctoral degree in economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (£ A FH5 A 22) in December
2007. From July 1985 to May 1992, he served as a technician, a production
dispatcher and an engineer of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1992 to May 1993, he was the
manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station (ZF)7 3 O /B 4
). From May 1993 to January 1998, he was the deputy plant manager and
plant manager of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From January 1998 to July 2000, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to
October 2002, he was the plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to December 2008, he served as the chairman and
general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (ZCMM).
From July 2015 to May 2020, he acted as the chairman of Henan Machinery
Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since December 2008, he has been the chairman of
the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jiao Chengyao held 5,901,964 A
Shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.384% of all its A Shares
and approximately 0.332% of all its Shares.
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&S B 1963F5 AL AEESA AL
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Xiang Jiayu (A% /), male, was born in August 1965 in Guangshan
County, Henan. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate
qualifications. From September 1980 to July 1984, he studied at the
Department of Electrical and Mechanical Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining
Institute (£5 ERZ 3 £2F5%), majoring in mechanisation. He studied at the China
University of Mining and Technology, Master’s Department (Beijing) (7 Bl%&
2K B AT A= EB) from September 1988 to January 1991, majoring
in mining mechanical engineering and obtained a master’s degree. From July
1984 to August 1988, he lectured at Yima Mining Technical School (= 55 5&
& BEAR). From May 1991 to December 1992, he was a designer at the
research centre of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December
1992 to July 1995, he was the executive officer of the No. 2 research centre
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November
1998, he was the deputy plant manager at Huanghe Electric Vehicle Plant (&
JAIEENELH) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November
1998 to July 2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project centre
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002,
he served as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general
manager and standing deputy general manager of ZCMM. From October 2008
to December 2008, he was a director and the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February 2015, he
was a director and the general manager of the Company. From February 2015
to February 2018, he has been the vice chairman of the Company. From July
2015 to December 2020, he was a director of Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd. From December 2014 to March 2021, he was the secretary to
the Party Committee of the Company. From February 2018 to March 2021, he
was a Director of the Company. He has been the vice chairman of the Company
since March 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Xiang Jiayu held 3,895,120 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.254% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.219% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Jia Hao (E ), male, was born in March 1970 with Han ethnicity. He holds
the qualification of a master’s degree. Mr. Jia graduated from University of
Shanghai for Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
manufacturing technology and equipment in 1991. In 2001, he obtained a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School. He successively served as an engineer and an assistant to the
director of Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific Research Institute
of China National Machinery Industry Corporation. He also served as a sales
manager of Parker Hannifin Motion & Control (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a standing
deputy general manager of Shanghai Ziyan Mould Industry Co., Ltd. of Zijiang
Group, a general manager of the investment department of Salim Wanye Group
(China) Co., Ltd., the president of Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited and
the chairman of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd.
From March 2014 to February 2018, he was the deputy general manager of the
Company. From February 2018 to March 2021, Mr. Jia was the vice chairman
and the general manager of the Company. He has been an employee Director
and the general manager of the Company since March 2021. He has also
served as the chairman of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (34
HIFEEIE (OFg) AR A A since January 2021,

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jia Hao held 2,631,000 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.171% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.148% of all its Shares.

Fu Zugang ({J4ER4), male, was born in November 1965 in Gong'an County,
Hubei. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with undergraduate
qualifications. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at Wuhan
Technology College (2% T 26;) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (42 F8 T X &2)), majoring in casting, and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002
to November 2006, he was the chairman of labour union of ZCMM. From
November 2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general
manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy
general manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he
was a director and a deputy general manager of the Company. From February
2015 to February 2018, he served as the general manager of the Company.
Since February 2018, he has been a Director of the Company and the general
manager of the coal mining machinery segment.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Zugang held 4,724,720 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.308% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.266% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Wang Xinying (£ #7%), male, was born in October 1965 in Xin'an County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate
qualifications. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at the
Department of Mining Engineering of Chongqing University (B2 A 2),
majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July 2007, he studied
at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of Mining and
Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s degree
in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer of
the equipment division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992. From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of machinery repair
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July
2000, he was a deputy director of the production division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head
of corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2015, he was a director and deputy
general manager of the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a Director
of the Company. He has been the chairman of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co.,
Ltd. since June 2016. Since May 2020, he has been a member of the Party
Committee and a director of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang Xinying held 1,895,040 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.123% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.106% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Directors

Cui Kai (££8]), male, was born in September 1974 in Jincheng City, Shanxi.
He holds postgraduate qualifications, CPC membership and the title of senior
economist. Mr. Cui graduated as a finance major from Henan University
of Economics and Law (A] g BA 4 BUE A Z2) with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in 1997, and as a finance major from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (77 &g B & B A A E2) with a master’s degree in
economics in 2001. He successively worked for Henan Provincial Investment
Company (7] Fg & 23535 & 42 /2 7)), Henan Venture Investment Co., LTD (3]
Bl 45% & P& D AR A 7)) and Henan Investment Group Company Limited
(AR & £E AR A 7)) from August 1997 to September 2017. He served
as the vice president of Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (A Fa & EE
A PR A R]) from September 2017 to December 2019. Since December
2019, Mr. Cui has become the president of Henan Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. Since May 2018, he has also served as the chairman of Henan Asset Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (AR EEE S EIEFR A R]). Since December
2020, Mr. Cui has also been the legal representative and general manager of
Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (5Azk 212 (r[F)
AR Aa]). Since March 2021, he has been a Director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Fei Guangsheng (&), male, was born in January 1965 in Hefei City,
Anhui Province. He holds CPC membership and postgraduate qualification
with a master’s degree, and serves as a senior economist, an engineer and a
senior human resource manager. He also has the qualifications for serving as
an independent director, secretary to the board and fund practitioner. Mr. Fei
Guangsheng majored in welding technology and equipment at Hefei University
of Technology from September 1985 to July 1989, obtaining undergraduate
qualification with a bachelor’s degree. From September 1995 to April 1999,
he studied at Tsinghua University majoring in business administration, and
obtained postgraduate qualification with a master’s degree. From August 1989
to June 1995, he successively served as a technician, director assistant and
manager of the tooling department at Xuzhou Loader Factory (5 1 5 S A% 5).
From May 1999 to April 2000, he headed the securities department of Xugong
Construction Machinery Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (&1 T F2 et
A% {5 AR A &)). From April 2000 to July 2007, he served as the secretary
to the board and the head of the securities department of Xugong Construction
Machinery Science & Technology Co., Ltd., as well as the deputy general
manager of Jiangsu Hangao Information Industry Co., Ltd. (T &2 =1{= &
EEZERRD B BR A 7). From July 2007 to November 2009, he served as the
deputy general manager, secretary to the board and the head of the securities
and audit department of Xugong Construction Machinery Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. From November 2009 to February 2010, he was the secretary to
the board and the head of the securities department of XCMG Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd. (& TEE TRE##R %% B R 2 7)) and the deputy
general manager of the technology branch of XCMG Construction Machinery
Co., Ltd. From February 2010 to November 2011, he served as the secretary
to the board and the head of the securities department of XCMG Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd. Since November 2011, he has been the secretary to
the board and the head of the securities department of XCMG Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd., and the director and general manager of Xuzhou Xu Gong
Investment Company Limited (5114 T 3% & A FR /A &)). Since August 2021,
he has been a director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited
(AR EEIE Cur) AFR2AR]). Since October 2021, he has been a
Director of the Company. Mr. Fei Guangsheng has also served as a director and
the general manager of Xuzhou Xu Gong Equity Investment Company Limited (&
M1 T REAESR & AR A 7)), the chairman of Xu Gong Hongshu (Shanghai)
Asset Management Company Limited (& TAT# ( -/8) EEEEAR
‘A a)), a director of XCMG Hanyun Technology Co., Ltd. (& T /& E R g (D
AR 7A &)) and a director of Qinghai Road and Bridge Construction Co., Ltd. (&
AR RER N ARART).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheng Jinglei (f28 ), male, was born in September 1967. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a master’s degree in
business administration. Mr. Cheng served for SAIC VOLKSWAGEN as an
engineer in logistics and industrial engineering, head of the planning and
logistics department, head of the production planning department and head
of the product engineering department, and served at SAIC Motor as the
general manager of its technology and quality department, president of the
engineering academy, as well as general manager of the strategy and business
planning department and chief engineer. Mr. Cheng was also the chairman
of SAIC Silicon Valley Venture Capital (52 E % E A 7)), Dalian
Sunrise Power Company (Fuel Cell) (RZEFTRA R (BAFEIEM) ) and
DIAS Automotive Electronic Systems Co., Ltd. (B &I;5E8EEFHR A 7)),
a director of SAIC VOLKSWAGEN and SAIC GM, the vice president of China
Society of Automotive Engineers, and the president of Shanghai Society of
Automotive Engineers. From June 2018 to April 2020, he served as the partner
and president of AGRC. He has been the founder and chairman of Shanghai
Shengshi Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (b/8 R & EIREAER A7)
since January 2020. From April 2018 to January 2020, he was an independent
director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited. He has been an independent
director of Shanghai Carthane Co., Ltd. (/@SB M R RHIIRMD AR A F)
(603037) since August 2019. Since October 2019, he has been a Director of
the Company.

Ji Feng (Z=%), male, was born with Chinese nationality in 1970. He is a
certified public accountant and a certified appraiser with a master’s degree in
accounting. In July 1992, he graduated from Jilin College of Finance and Trade
(F #REF B E2B5%) (now Jilin University of Finance and Economics) and obtained
a bachelor’s degree in accounting. In December 2010, he obtained a master’s
degree in accounting from the Business School of Jilin University. From July
1992 to December 1992, he served as a staff member of the First Division
of Industry and Finance (T84 — &) of the Bureau of Finance of Changchun.
From January 1993 to March 1995, he served as the financial manager of both
Dalian Company and Jilin Company of China National Chemical Construction (77
BA/b, T 322%). From March 1995 to December 2001, he served as the deputy
general manager of Jilin Zhaoxian Qiushi Accounting Firm (F B &K E
A7), Since January 2002, he has been a partner, a managing
partner, and a quality control managing partner of Dahua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership). Since 26 March 2015, he has been
an independent director of Beijing Municipal Road and Bridge Co., Ltd. From
20 April 2020, he has been an independent director of Beijing Tieke Shougang
Railway-Tech Co., Ltd. He has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2021.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Guo Wenqing (Z832 &), female, was born with Chinese nationality in Beijing
in 1967. He possesses postgraduate qualifications and professional lawyer
qualifications. In July 1990, he graduated from the Law School of Renmin
University of China and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. He obtained a
master’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China in January
1996 and an EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School
in August 2011. Since August 2010, he has been a chief legal counsel of the
private banking department of China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. He served as
a partner and lawyer of Beijing Dentons Law Firm (1 52 7 A A% 22 Bl S5 75 )
from 1994 to 2001, a partner of Beijing Tongwei Law Firm (1t 5 77 [R) 4& 22l
E7%FT) from 2001 to 2005, and a partner of Beijing Kangda Law Firm from
2005 to 2010. He also served as independent director of Shanghai Phichem
Material Co., Ltd., from March 2011 to March 2017, and an independent
director of Beijing Ctrowell Technology Corporation Limited from October 2011
to September 2017. She has been an independent non-executive Director of the
Company since March 2021,

Fang Yuan (/5 %), male, is the founding managing partner of Starquest
Capital, a China-based private equity investment firm with its investment
strategies focused on consumer, healthcare and technology sectors. Prior to
founding Starquest Capital in 2018, Mr. Fang served as the head of LGT Capital
Partners in China for 12 years. Before joining LGT Capital Partners in early
2007, Mr. Fang worked for AXA Private Equity Group in Singapore, focusing
on fund investment and direct investment in the Pan-Asia region. Mr. Fang
has a total of 20 years of experience in the financial sector. Mr. Fang holds a
bachelor’s degree in accounting from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, a MBA
degree from INSEAD Business School and an EMBA degree from Tsinghua
University PBC School of Finance. Mr. Fang also holds the Chinese certified
public accountant qualification. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of VCREDIT Holdings Limited (listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange; stock code: HK02003) on 19 August 2020. He has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since March 2021.
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Liu Qiang (2)3&), male, was born in June 1969 in Yongcheng City, Henan. He is
a CPC member and a senior auditor. From September 1986 to July 1990, Mr.
Liu studied at Nankai University, majoring in economics management and law,
and obtained bachelor’s degrees in law and economics. From September 2001
to July 2004, he studied at Wuhan University, majoring in world economics, and
obtained a master’s degree. In July 2009, he graduated from Henan University,
majoring in regional economics, and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He
obtained a doctoral degree in economics in December 2009. From July 1990
to November 2002, he successively worked at the agriculture audit division,
general office and division of legal affairs under the Department of Audit of
Henan Province, and his last position was the department-head-level officer.
From November 2002 to July 2012, he was the deputy section-level supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by
Henan Provincial Government (R F& & & BB 2 EFS). From July
2012 to November 2012, he served as the department-head-level supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by
Henan Provincial Government. From November 2012 to September 2014, he
was a researcher of Provincially Administered Medium and Small Enterprise
Department (& B /NP &) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government. He also
served as a researcher of Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government from September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014,
he has been the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Company. From
February 2015 to February 2018, he was a Director of the Company. Since
February 2018, he has been the chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the
chairman of the Labor Union of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Liu Qiang held 11,500 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.0007% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.0006% of all the shares of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Cheng Xiangdong (F2¥33), male, was born in December 1973 in Qixian
County, Henan. He is a CPC member and a political analyst with a master” s
degree in management. From September 1993 to July 1995, he studied at
the History Department of Shanggiu Teachers College (B k&l =& 5
FHE2A). From July 1995 to September 2000, he was a staff member of the
Office of the Bureau of Materials of Shangaiu (7 L TH 1 & B A E). From
September 2000 to December 2002, he was a deputy director of the Office of
the Party Committee of the Bureau of Materials of Shangqiu. From December
2002 to June 2008, he was a deputy director of the Office of Shangqiu Material
Circulation Centre (7 fr T #0& 7t /L 32 =) (during which, he studied
at Zhengzhou University with undergraduate qualifications from September
1996 to June 2000, majoring in administration management). From June 2008
to August 2008, he worked at the human resources department of Yongcheng
Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd. From August 2008 to December 2009, he
worked at the Beijing Office of Yongcheng Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd.
From December 2009 to October 2010, he was a general manager assistant
and a sales director of Shanggiu Longyu Chemical Co., Ltd. From October
2010 to January 2011, he was a deputy general manager of Shanggiu Longyu
Chemical Co., Ltd. From January 2011 to September 2013, he was a director
of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary Commission (40 % Z= {446
& =) of Henan Coal Chemical Industry Group. From September 2013 to
August 2015, he was a director of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Energy and Chemical Industry Group (during which, he
enrolled in EMBA studies at Beijing Jiaotong University from December 2012
to January 2015 and obtained a master’ s degree in management). From
August 2015 to November 2017, he was a director of the Case Supervision
Office of the Disciplinary Commission, a member of the Party Committee and
the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Sales Company of Henan
Energy and Chemical Industry Group. From November 2017 to May 2020, he
was a member of the Party Committee and the secretary to the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since May 2020,
he has been a member of the Party Committee, the secretary to the Disciplinary
Commission, and a director of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Wang Yue (£ %), male,was born in July 1970 in Nanyang County, Henan.
He is a CPC member and a certified public accountant with a master’s degree.
In July 1993, he graduated from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics
(R = B A€ E2B5%E) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring
in industrial economics. In July 2006, he obtained an MBA degree from
Zhengzhou University (&5 A Z2). From October 1993 to October 1998, he
was an accountant in Zhengzhou Running Water General Corporation (&5 T
B 2ok 482 &]). From November 1998 to March 2001, he was the deputy
head of the department of accounting and finance of Zhengzhou Dongzhou
Water Supply Company Limited (&N 77 52 /K AR 2 51). From June
2004 to December 2009, he was successively the deputy head and head of the
finance department and the financial controller of Zhengzhou Running Water
General Corporation. From December 2009 to November 2013, he was the
chief accountant of Zhengzhou Running Water Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (&5
I B AR K35 & 122 B A BR A 7). From November 2013 to September 2015,
he was the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Development Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (BB 2% R 1% & &= B B BR /2 &)). Since September 2015, he
has been the deputy general manager of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. Since February 2018, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Zhang Yonglong (3& 7K 8€), male, was born in January 1980 in Chaohu City,
Anhui. He, with Chinese nationality but without the right of permanent residence
abroad, is a senior accountant with qualification of Chinese certified public
accountant and a master’s degree. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Shenzhen University in 2003 and a master’s degree in
business administration from Xiamen University in 2017. From February 2002
to January 2004, he served as the information manager of Shenzhen Maoyu
Watch Factory (ZRYIE 48§88k ). From February 2004 to March 2007, he
was an operation management engineer of Fuzhun Precision Industry (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. of Foxconn Group. From April 2007 to June 2012, he served as an
accountant of Han's Laser Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd. and the financial
director of its subsidiary. From July 2012 to December 2017, he has been a
financial manager and chief financial officer of Han’s Holding Group Co., Ltd.
Since January 2018, he served as the vice president of Han’s Holding Group
Co., Ltd. Since December 2020, Mr. Zhang has concurrently served as a
director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (GAsR 1> E
12 GAFE) AR A ). Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the
Company. Since April 2021, he has been a director of Han’s Laser Technology
Industry Group Co., Ltd.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Zhang Minglin (3845 #K), male, was born in January 1963. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a doctoral degree. From
September 1979 to July 1983, he studied at Huainan Mining Institute (&g
T 2 2205%), majoring in mining. He obtained an EMBA degree from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (£ 7 15 K &) in December 2004
and a doctoral degree in economics in December 2007 from that university.
From August 1983 to August 1987, he was a section member of Henan Coal
Mine Supply Company (7] 8 & FERE L & A 7)). From August 1987 to May
1996, he worked as a section member, a deputy senior section member and
a senior section member of Henan Coal Industrial Department. From August
1995 to February 1996, he went to Zhenggiao Village, Huzu Town, Gushi
County in Xinyang to participate in the party construction in rural areas which
was organised by Henan Provincial Committee of Chinese Communist Party.
From May 1996 to May 1999, he was the deputy general manager of Henan
Coal Mine Supply Company. From May 1999 to April 2004, he served as the
general manager and the secretary to the Party Committee of Henan Coal Mine
Supply Company. From October 2000 to November 2004, he served as the
general manager of Henan Coal Sales Company Limited (] 554 I& iR $5 €&
BB E £ 7). From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as a
deputy general manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2018, he
has been the deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2018,
he has been a researcher of the Company. Since March 2021, he has been a
supervisor of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Minglin held 100,000 A shares
of the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.007% of all the A shares
of the Company and approximately 0.006% of all the shares of the Company.

Bao Xueliang (§2Z R), male, was born in March 1963 in Jiangyin City,
Jiangsu. He holds undergraduate qualifications. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology (H E#% £ X £2), majoring in mechanical
design and automation. From August 1985 to June 1998, he successively
served as a technician, engineer and deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of
Tianjin Coal Mine Specialised Equipment Factory (<2 1E 25 A 2% 45 8R).
From July 1998 to December 2000, he successively served as an investment
manager and a deputy director of the project investment department of Tianjin
Science and Technology Development Investment Corporation (<2 3% %
FRIZE 42 7)). From January 2001 to May 2007, he successively served
as the administrative director and standing deputy general manager of Tianjin
Bohai Venture Capital Investment Management Company (X &£IB 55 &l 2
$&°& & 38 2 @), From June 2007 to October 2008, he served as the assistant
to the chairman of ZCMM. From October 2008 to December 2008, he served as
the board secretary (deputy general manager level) of ZCMM. From December
2008 to February 2015, he severed as the board secretary of the Company.
Since February 2015, he has been a researcher of the Company. Since March
2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Cui Zonglin (£ 5= #k), male, was born with Han nationality in May 1963. He,
with Chinese nationality but without the right of permanent residence abroad,
is a CPC member, a senior economist and a human resource manager. In July
1983, he graduated from Zhengzhou Coal Management Institute, majoring
in labour economics. In July 1986, he graduated from Zhengzhou University,
majoring in law. In December 1995, he graduated from the Party School of CPC
Central Committee, majoring in economic management. He has been working
in the Company since 1983, successively serving as a principal staff member,
section chief, an assistant to the head and a deputy head of the human
resources department, and a deputy head (in charge of work) and the head of
the legal affairs department. He has been a special expert of the Company since
February 2018. Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hao (E%) is a general manager of the Company. Please refer to
“Directors” of this section for his biography.

Fu Qi ({43%), male, was born in November 1969 in Biyang, Henan. He is a
member of the Chinese Communist Party and a senior engineer. He is a deputy
general manager of the Company. From September 1988 to July 1992, he
studied at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical
design and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section
member of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December
1996, he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first
development division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he
was a section officer and the deputy head of the sales planning division, the
deputy head of the marketing department, and the deputy head of the sub —
plant of installation of the Company. From January 2006 to March 2008, he
was the head of the production and manufactory department of the Company.
From March 2008 to April 2010, he was the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading Co., Ltd. From April 2010 to
February 2012, he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee
of Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been
the deputy general manager of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Qi held 815,500 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.053% of all the A shares of the
Company and approximately 0.046% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Zhang Haibin (5&Z5&), male, was born in September 1981 in Xinmi, Henan
and is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He is the secretary to the
Board and company secretary of the Company. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in
July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was a secretary of the general
office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the chief
secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From December 2008 to March
2010, he was the chief secretary of the general office of the Company. From
March 2010 to September 2010, he served as an assistant to the head of the
general office of the Company. From September 2010 to January 2012, he
served as the deputy head of capital operation department and representative
for securities affairs of the Company. From January 2012 to February 2015,
he was the head of general office, head of capital operation department and
representative for securities affairs of the Company. From July 2012 to February
2015, he was the head of division of party and masses’ affairs. From February
2015 to February 2018, he has been the deputy general manager and the
board secretary of the Company. From July 2017 to February 2018, he has
concurrently been the chief financial officer of the Company. Since February
2018, he has been the board secretary of the Company. Since January 2021,
he has also served as the director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan)
Limited (SAsk X B2 () AR A F).

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Haibin held 815,500 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.053% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.046% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Huang Hua (&7£), female, was born in January 1969 in Zhongshan,
Guangdong. She is a chartered financial analyst (CFA) and an engineer. She is
the chief financial officer of the Company. In July 1987, she graduated from
Central South University majoring in metal physics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in science. In August 1990, she obtained a master’s degree in
engineering majoring in inorganic non-metal materials granted by the Institution
of Metal Research under Chinese Academy of Sciences. In December 2000,
she obtained a master of business administration (MBA) degree from China
Europe International Business School. From August 1990 to November 1991,
she served as an assistant researcher at the Institution of Metal Research
(Shenyang) under Chinese Academy of Sciences. From December 1991 to
April 1999, she served as the plant manager of sub-plant, manager of the
corporate management department, chief engineer and assistant general
manager of Shenzhen Jinke Special Materials Co., Ltd. From September 2000
to May 2001, she served as a senior project manager at the capital operation
department of China Online (Bermuda) Company Limited (2 BfE42 (B 5
K) AR F]). From August 2001 to July 2003, she served as investment
manager of Shenzhen Innovation Centre Co., Ltd. (FIIBIFTEHEZEHBRE A
aJ). From August 2003 to March 2005, she served as the general manager
and director of Shenyang Jinchangpu New Materials Company Limited (3§[5
& E TR A F]). From May 2005 to December 2006, she served
as the general manager of Jinco Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. From January
2007 to June 2008, she served as a project manager and senior analyst at
VALE INCO LIMITED (formerly the headquarters of Inco Ltd. (h1 & K BIRRE2 2
Zxal). From July 2008 to September 2017, she served as the treasurer and
risk officer of Vale Minerals (China) Co. Ltd. (A7 A A EE BT AR A
aJ). From October 2017 to February 2018, she has been the consultant for the
acquisition of Bosch by the Company. Since February 2018, she served as the
chief financial officer of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Huang Hua held 815,500 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.053% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.046% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Li Weiping (Z=48F), female, was born in February 1974 in Hengshan,
Hunan. She is a deputy general manager of the Company. From October
2003 to June 2005, she studied under the MBA programme in the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. From September 1995 to August 2002, she
served as the human resources commissioner/supervisor/manager of ABB
Xinhui Low Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd. (ABB ¥T& KB AR A 7).
From September 2002 to September 2004, she served as the senior human
resources manager of Bosch Heating System Co., Ltd. ({4888 R4 E R
7~ &)). From September 2004 to September 2008, she served as the director
of human resources at Bosch Automotive Diesel Systems Co., Ltd. (&t ;55
L5l R4 AR A 7). From July 2008 to December 2009, she served as the
director of Asia-Pacific human resources at the German headquarters of Bosch
Rexroth (Rohr, Germany). From January 2010 to March 2012, she served as
the director of human resources at Bosch Rexroth Hydraulic (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (&
A+ E%E (dER) ARZA ). From January 2012 to August 2018,
she served as the director of human resources and chief business officer of
Bosch Automotive Components (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (St 5B R4 (ZFM)
AR A a]). Since October 2018, she has been the deputy general manager of
Zhengzhou Goal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Li Weiping held 816,500 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.053% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.046% of all the shares of the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the company secretary. Please refer to “— Senior
Management” of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (BR#ZE), aged 46, is the assistant to the company
secretary. Ms. Chan is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. She has over 20 years of professional experience
in handling the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters
for listed companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various internationally
well-known professional firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in professional
accounting. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. She is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective and reasonable corporate governance
practices are essential to the development of the Group and can safeguard and
enhance the interests of the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Review Period”), the
Company complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in
a responsible and effective manner, being responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings, deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units, preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans, and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration and Assessment Committee. These Board committees are
assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which at least include the following:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors five days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in
case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone
or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener explains at the
meeting. A written notice of meeting shall at least include the business to be
considered and the meeting information as necessary for the Directors to vote.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal, nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is concluded. The participating Directors shall
sign the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorise them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board convened 13 meetings in total, one on
each of 3 February 2021, 25 February 2021, 15 March 2021, 26 March 2021,
31 March 2021, 14 April 2021, 17 April 2021, 26 April 2021, 4 June 2021, 3

August 2021, 26 August 2021, 25 October 2021, 15 December 2021.

Attendance of meetings by each Director during the Review Period is recorded as

follows:
Name of Directors
- £3:8
Mr. Jiao Chengyao ERELE
Mr. Xiang Jiayu AEREE
M. Jia Hao BERE
Mr. Fu Zugang TR EE
Mr. Wang Xinying Bk bt
M. Cui Kai B L

(Appointect on 31 March 2021) (RANEIAJNBEZRA)

Mr. Fei Guangsheng BEBEE

(Appointed on 25 October 2021)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei RESZLE
Mr. Ji Feng FeEE

(Appointed on 31 March 2021) (RNNFIRINBEZRT)
Ms. Guo Wenging Ixart

(Appointec! on 31 March 2021) (RANEIAINBEZA)
Mr. Fang Yuan FEEE

(Appointec! on 31 March 2021) (RANEIAJNBEZA)
Mr. Yang Dongsheng BREALE

(Aopointed on 31 March 2021 and (RAONEIASIHERS -

resignation effective from 3 August 2021) TN ESAIABT)
Mr. Wang Bin TERE

(Resignation effective from 31 March 2021) (R0 F3R3IBET)
M. Li Xudong EiES

(Resignation effective from 31 March 2021) (R0 F3R3IBET)
M. Jiang Hua TERE

(Resignation effective from 31 March 2021) (R0 F3R3IBET)

(R0 F10ABEERT)

Number of
Board meetings
attended in
person

it
Ezeny

1
1
1
1
1
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Number of Number of
Board meetings  Board meetings Number of
required attended  Board meetings Attendance
to be attended by proxy not attended rate
BB Zit
HEREY R HRERH £
13 0 0 100%
13 0 0 100%
13 0 0 100%
13 0 0 100%
13 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
2 0 0 100%
13 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
8 1 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
5 0 0 100%
4 0 0 100%
4 0 0 100%
4 0 0 100%
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Board of Directors (continued) BEES s
General Meetings BEAS

WEHN > ARRHBHATIRBRRAE  BOEE -
EELSREBABHETRREREG - UTRESHE

During the reporting period, the Company convened a total of four general
meetings, which was attended by some of the Directors, Supervisors and senior

management. Attendance of general meetings by the Directors is recorded as REREREIFR -
follows:
2020 Annual General
Meeting (2021 First
A Shareholders
(Class Meeting,
2021 First 2021 First 2021 Second 2021 Third
Extraordinary HShareholders  Extraordinary  Extraordinary  Attendance Actual  Attendance
Name of Directors (General Meeting Class Meeting) General Meeting  General Megting required  attendance rate
WNFFERRAE
(015FE-R
MNRERIRRAS
NANFE-R WNEFE-R  WANFEZR WNFE=R
EEpE EERRAE HREANRRAS) EBRERAE BRRRAE ELERE BRLERLY ir):
r. Jiao Chengyao ERELE | | | | 4 4 100%
M. Xieng Jiayu CES % | | | | 4 4 100%
M. Jia Hao st { | | | 4 4 100%
Mr. Fu Zugang FRmEE | | | | 4 4 100%
Nr. Wang Xinying THass | | | | 4 4 100%
M, Cui Ka el NATER | | 3 2 67%
(Appointed on 31 March 2021) (RN F3IA3 BEEA)
i, Fei Guangsheng BRBEE NATER NATEA NATEA NATEA NATER NATER NATEE
(fppointed on 25 October 2021)  (A021E10ABAEE()
Mr. Cheng Jingle BEELE | | | | 4 4 100%
Nr. JiFeng Fons NNFiE R | | | 3 3 100%
(Appointed on 31 March 2021) (R 3R BEZRA)
Ms. Guo Wenging i)} -an NNFiE R | | | 3 3 100%
(Appointed on 31 March 2021) (RN F3IAs BEEA)
M, Fang Yun FEkE NATER | | { 3 3 100%
(Appointed on 31 March 2021) (RN F3IAs BEEA)
Nr. Yang Dongsheng BRAE NNFiE R | | A& 2 2 100%
(Appointed on 31 March 2021 (MN1EIAS BERAT
and resignation ffective from TANNFBRIAEHE)
3 August 2021)
Mr, Wang Bin iy { NATEA NATEA NATEA 1 1 100%
(Resignation ffectve from (R0AFIAIIBER)
31 March 2021)
Mr. Li Xudong S J NATEA NATEA NATEA 1 1 100%
(Resignation ffectve from (R0AFIAIBER)
31 March 2021)
M. Jiang Hua IEfE | NARSER NATSER NATSER 1 1 100%
(Resignation effective from (R0AFIAIBER)

31 March 2021)




58

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2021

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition

During the Review Period, from 1 January 2021 to 30 March 2021, the
Board consisted of nine Directors, comprising six executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors; from 31 March 2021 to 2 August
2021, the Board consisted of eleven Directors, comprising five executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors; from 3 August 2021 to 24 October 2021, the Board consisted of
ten Directors, comprising five executive Directors, one non-executive Directors
and four independent non-executive Directors; and from 25 October 2021 to
31 December 2021, the Board consisted of eleven Directors, comprising five
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors. One-third or more of the members of the Board of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors.

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors possess extensive
experience in equipment manufacturing industry, and the independent non-
executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications in law and
accounting as well as financial management expertise. In accordance with the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in
all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period and the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao, Mr. Fu Zugang and Mr. Wang Xinying.

Non-executive Directors: Mr. Cui Kai, Mr. Fei Guangsheng.

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Cheng Jinglei, Mr. Ji Feng, Ms. Guo
Wengqing and Mr. Fang Yuan.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the
Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
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Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. During the Review
Period, Mr. Jiao Chengyao was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Jia
Hao was the General Manager. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely
and constructively. The General Manager is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to manage the Company’s day-to-day business in all aspects
effectively, implement major strategies and coordinate the overall business
operation.

Internal Control

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph D.2 of
the CG Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board has established a
risk management and internal control system, and has continuously supervised
and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s operation. The system is
aimed at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient operation, and
offering reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the financial reports and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and safeguarding the
Group’s assets.

Structure of risk management and internal control functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organisational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit Committee, the management of the Company, the
Audit and Legal Department, the Risk Management Department and various
departments of the Company.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of risk management and internal control functions
(Continued)

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance
of the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The
Audit Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the Company’s
risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and makes
recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit and Legal
Department and the Risk Management Department of the Company conducts
internal audit and supervision for risk management, and is responsible to the
management of the Company. As the first line of defence in risk management
and internal control, various departments of the Company organise and carry out
the daily work in risk management and accept the organisation, coordination,
guidance and supervision by the management, the Audit and Legal Department
and the Risk Management Department of the Company in doing their part of risk
management and internal control in their respective professional areas.

Commencement of risk management work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system and
internal control structure. During the Review Period, based on the methodology
of risk management covering risk identification, risk assessment, risk response,
risk reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganised and identified the
possible risks from different aspects, such as strategy, operation, finance,
market, law and others, and thereby built up a risk incident database that was
unique to the Company.

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from two perspectives,
namely vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from
the occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and,
through evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with.
This is to ensure that appropriate management resources are allocated to
the management of major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and
control in key areas.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of risk management and internal control functions
(Continued)

Commencement of risk management work (Continued)

The Risk Management Department of the Company is responsible for internal
audit in risk management. By organising and commencing the supervision
and assessment of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company
continuously monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes
in risks in the course of operation and management of each responsible
department for risks, supervises and assesses whether each department is
able to commence risk management work in accordance with the relevant
regulations and the results of the work, and makes recommendations on
improving the effectiveness of implementing risk management work.

Operation of the internal control system

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedures and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation
and disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination
of inside information. Through gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterised by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.

Risk management and internal control for the Review Period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 28 March 2022. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2021 indicated no control failure
for major risks in the Company and revealed no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the CG Code. The Board has assessed
the Company’s risk management and internal control system as effective and
adequate.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 153 of the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be
elected or replaced at the shareholders’ general meeting and can be removed
from their office prior to the expiry of their term by the general meeting, with
a term of three (3) years. At the expiry of such term of office, the term is
renewable upon re-election.

Employee representatives in the Board shall be elected or removed at employee
representatives’ general meetings, employees’ general meetings or other
demaocratic elections.

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or up-to-date version of the
relevant laws, rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and executives to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organised by
professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the Directors are provided with written training
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.

The Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in continuous
professional development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be
improved and updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the
Directors by seminars and provision of training information.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors had been given
relevant guideline materials and attended trainings regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, as well as the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
had been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the periods from 19 July
2014 to 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016, from 19 July 2016
to 18 July 2017, from 18 July 2017 to 17 July 2018, from 18 July 2018 to 17
July 2019, from 18 July 2019 to 17 July 2020, from 18 July 2020 to 17 July
2021 and from 18 July 2021 to 17 July 2022.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors, who have confirmed
their compliance with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its Directors, Supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration system
for Directors, Supervisors and senior management is based on the principle
of combining incentives and disciplines, and market-oriented adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in different forms, including salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme
contributions made on their behalf.

During the Review Period, Ms. Guo Wenqing, as an independent non-executive
Director, has waived her remuneration for the year 2021.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All the Directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2021,

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Board Committees

During the Review Period, the Board has set up four committees, namely, the
Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code.
These Board committees are assigned respective responsibilities according
to their terms of reference. The composition and main functions of these
committees and their work during the Review Period are set out as follows:

Strategy Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy Committee
comprised Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fei Guangsheng,
Mr. Jia Hao and and Mr. Cheng Jinglei.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to study and
comment on our long-term development plans and significant investment
strategies, including: (i) reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies; (ii) reviewing and commenting on the Company’s significant capital
investment and financing proposals that require approval of the Board; (i)
reviewing and commenting on the significant capital expenditure and assets
management projects that require approval of the Board; and (iv) exercising
other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

The Strategy Committee did not convene any meeting during the year.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit Committee
comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Cui Kai and Ms. Guo Wenging. The Audit
Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director and comprises
a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the Company’s financial reports and auditing work, including: (i)
proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors; (ii) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports and
accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding financial
reporting as stated in financial statements and reports; (iii) coordinating the
communication between our internal Audit Department and the independent
auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure
of such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control system and
auditing on the material connected or related party transactions; (vi) reviewing
the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk management systems
and to evaluate whether there is material failure or weakness in the risk
management and internal control of the Company; (vii) discussing the risk
management and internal control system with the management to ensure that
the management has performed its duty to establish such effective systems; (viii)
researching on major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and the management’s response to these findings as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative; (ix) evaluating the changes in the nature
and extent of significance of the material risks the Company faces after the
previous year and its ability to respond to the changes in the business and the
changes in external environment; and () exercising other functions and duties as
authorised by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee convened four meetings, with
full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 25 March 2021, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its first meeting in 2021, where it considered and approved the
Proposal on 2020 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of
the Company, the Proposal on 2020 Annual Report and Summary of the
Company, the Proposal on the 2020 Report on Internal Control Assessment
of the Company, the Proposal on the 2020 Report on Internal Control Audit
of the Company, the Proposal on the 2020 Report on the Performance of
Duties of the Audit Committee of the Board of the Company, the Proposal
on the Appointment of External Audit Institution and Internal Control Audit
Institution for 2021, the Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of
the Company in 2020 and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of
the Company in 2021, and the Proposal on the Provision for Impairment of
Goodwill;

(2)  On 26 April 2021, the Audit Committee of the fifth session of the Board
convened its first meeting in 2021, where it considered and approved the
Proposal on the 2021 First Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited;

(3)  On 25 August 2021, the Audit Committee of the fifth session of the Board
convened its second meeting in 2021, where it considered and approved
the Proposal on 2021 Interim Report of the Company;

(4)  On 25 October 2021, the Audit Committee of the fifth session of the Board
convened its third meeting in 2021, where it considered and approved the
Proposal on the 2021 Third Quarterly Report of the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprised Ms. Guo Wenging (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu and Mr. Cheng
Jinglei. The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
Director and is composed of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
Directors and management personnel; (iii) search for qualified candidates of
Directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of Directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
Directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the
Board.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee convened three meetings,
with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 15 March 2021, the Nomination Committee of the fourth session of
the Board convened its first meeting in 2021, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Nominating Candidates for Non-independent
Directors of the Fifth Session of the Board and the Proposal on Nominating
Candidates for Independent Directors of the Fifth Session of the Board,;

(2) On 14 April 2021, the Nomination Committee of the fifth session of
the Board convened its first meeting in 2021, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on the Appointment of the General Manager of
the Company, the Proposal on the Appointment of the Deputy General
Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, and the Proposal
on the Appointment of the Secretary to the Board and Representative for
Securities Affairs of the Company;

(3) On 3 August 2021, the Nomination Committee of the fifth session of the
Board convened its second meeting in 2021, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Nominating Candidate for Non-independent
Directors.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao and
Mr. Fang Yuan. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director and is composed of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s Directors and management personnel; (ii) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s Directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such Directors and officers;
(iii) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
convened three meeting, with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 17 April 2021, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2021, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2021 Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme (Draft) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited and the Summary thereof, and the Proposal on the
Administrative Measures for Performance Evaluation under the 2021
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited;

(2)  On 4 June 2021, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the fifth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2021,
where it considered and approved the Proposal on the Non-independent
Directors’ Remuneration Package of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, and the Proposal on the Senior Management’s
Remuneration Package of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited. The following proposal was directly submitted to the
Board of Directors for deliberation because some members abstained
from voting and failed to form valid resolutions: “the Proposal on the
Independent Directors’ Remuneration Package of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited”;

(3)  On 15 December 2021, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the fifth session of the Board convened its third meeting in 2021, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on the Adjustment to the List
of Participants and the Number of Options under the 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme and Cancellation of Certain Options, the Proposal on
Reviewing the Results of the Annual Performance Assessment of the
Participants of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme, and the Proposal
on Meeting the Conditions of Exercise for the First Exercise Period of 2019
Share Option Incentive Scheme.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
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of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 SIAEFERRERABNFEMNSIZEF SR A0

December 2021 is set out below: T
Remuneration band (RMB’000) Number of individuals
FMAR (AR T ) A
0-500 4
500-750 1
750-1,000 0
>1,000 8

Board Diversity Policy EE2ZT{LBER

Purpose e

With a view to achieving sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and maintaining its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates for the Company’s Directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company each year.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review annually on the Board’s composition
in respect of diversity, and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic auditors
of the Company, respectively. The Company has not changed auditors in the
past three years. Details of fees paid or payable to the auditors by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

R BB B

AATE D RIIEERE B KBS BN E g5
MEBS(BEREREE)EARRRNRBEERNZ
HED - BEZF - ARBIARFIREE o B E2021F12
A3BIFE - AEBEHEMNETMNEBFIBN
T

Services rendered Fees
FriR AR 3% WELEE
(RMB’000)

(AE®T )

2021 annual audit 2021 F [Z % 13,469
Non-audit services IEENZRTE 1,277
Total 4=t 14,746

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the Board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Zhang and to
provide assistance to Mr. Zhang to discharge his duties and responsibilities as
company secretary such as organising meetings of the Board and meetings
of holders of the H Shares and gaining the relevant experience as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan is an
associate director of a corporate service provider, SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Zhang, whom Ms. Chan will contact on matters relating to
corporate governance, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong as well as other laws
and regulations which are relevant to the Company and other affairs of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period, respectively.
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Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information.
Information of the Company is communicated mainly through the Company’s
corporate communications including interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, etc. These publications are sent to the shareholders in
a timely manner and are also available on the website of the Company
(http://www.zmj.com). The means of communication between the Company and
the shareholders also include general meetings, analysts meetings or seminars,
one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation, advertisements, media interviews
and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) individually or in
aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to propose an extraordinary general
meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance with laws, administrative
regulations, and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing on
whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting, within
ten days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the extraordinary general
meeting shall be issued within five days to all shareholders after the Board
resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving the request,
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the Company’s
shares shall have the right to propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board of
Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original proposals
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue a notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for over 90 consecutive days shall have
the right to convene and preside over the meeting on their own. All reasonable
expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the shareholders as a result of
the failure of the Board and the Board of Supervisors to convene a meeting as
required by the above request(s) shall be borne by the Company, and any sum
S0 compensated shall be set-off against sums owed by the Company to the
defaulting Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding 3% or above of the Company’s shares shall have the right to submit
proposals to the Company. Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3%
or above of the Company’s shares can submit a temporary proposal to the
convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations consultant of the Company:

Strategic Development Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167, 9th Street,
Econ-Tech Development Zone,
Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC
Telephone: (86 371) 6789 1199
Fax: (86 371) 6789 1000
Postal Code: 450016

Amendments to the Articles of Association

During the Review Period, the Articles of Association of the Company has been
revised twice. The amendments were considered and approved at the 2021
First Extraordinary General Meeting, held on 31 March 2021, and the sixth
meeting of the fifth session of the Board of Directors, held on 3 August 2021.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 March 2021
and 3 August 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 16 March 2021
respectively for details.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to
allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits and the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth (the “Dividend Policy”).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Dividend Policy is as follows:

U

()

Profit distribution of the Company shall reflect reasonable investment
returns to the investors and, by giving considerations to the reasonable
capital demands of the Company, work out a profit distribution plan in
conformity with the sustainable development requirement and profit
optimisation principle of the Company by referring to factors such as the
size of share capital, development strategies, investment plans, profit
growth and cash flows.

The Company may pay dividends in the form of cash or shares and may
conduct interim dividend distribution in the form of cash. If the cash flow
allows, profit distribution should be conducted in the form of cash dividend.

The conditions of cash dividend of the Company: when the Company
records a profit for the year and the cumulative undistributed profit for the
year, after making up for losses in previous years and allocation to the
common reserve fund in accordance with laws, is positive in value, and
where the auditing firm issues an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
report of the Company for the year, the Company may prioritise distribution
of dividend in cash. If the Company distributes dividend in cash, it shall
follow the rules below:

1. If the Company is in a mature development stage without significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 80%;

2. If the Company is in a mature development stage with significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 40%;

3. If the Company is in a growth stage with significant capital
expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend in profit
distribution shall be 20%;

If it is difficult to determine the Company’s stage of development while
it has a significant capital expenditure plan, the profit distribution may
be dealt with pursuant to the rules applied in the previous distribution.
Major investment or significant cash expenditure refers to the proposed
external investment by the Company within the next twelve months,
asset acquisition (including land use rights) or facilities procurement with
accumulated expenditure amounting to or exceeding 10% of the latest
audited net assets of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(V)

(v

Specific conditions for share dividend distribution: provided that the
Company’s business is in a sound condition and the reasonable scale
of share capital of the Company is ensured, and when the Board of the
Company believes the share dividend distribution will be in the interests of
all shareholders of the Company, the Company may propose to distribute
the share dividend and implement upon the consideration and approval at
the general meeting.

The profits of the Company to be distributed shall not go beyond the scope
of cumulative distributable profits.

When profits are recorded in the current year and after the Company has
sufficiently allocated to the statutory reserve fund, the cumulative profits
distributed in cash for the last three years shall not be less than 30% of
the average distributable profits realised for the last three years.

Where there is a change in the Company’s control resulting from securities
issuance, material asset reorganisation, merger, division or acquisition,
the Company shall disclose in details the cash dividend policy and relevant
arrangements after such offering, issuance, reorganisation or change in
the control, as well as the Board’s explanation of the aforesaid, in the
prospectus, offering proposal, material asset reorganisation report, report
of change of interest or acquisition report.

(VIll) On the premise that the returns to shareholders has been thoroughly

considered and the legitimate rights and interests of the public
shareholders are guaranteed, if the Company realises profits at the current
year, the Board of Directors shall bring forward scientific and reasonable
profit distribution suggestions and proposal and submit them to the
shareholders’ general meeting for voting. The Company shall practically
secure the right of public shareholders to attend the shareholders’
general meeting; and the Board of Directors, independent Directors and
shareholders meeting certain conditions may solicit the right to vote at the
shareholders’ general meeting from shareholders of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (continued)

(IX) Decision-making processes and mechanisms for profit distribution of the
Company:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall devise a reasonable
dividend distribution recommendation and proposal based on the
profitability, capital requirements and shareholders’ returns plan of
the Company and implement after the consideration and approval
at the general meeting upon the consideration and approval by the
Board. Any adjustment thereof shall go through the procedures above
again. The independent Directors of the Company shall examine the
profit distribution proposal and issue independent opinions thereon;
independent Directors may solicit opinions of minority shareholders,
prepare a dividend distribution proposal and submit it directly to the
Board for consideration.

The Company shall strictly implement its cash dividend policy as
determined in the Articles of Association and the specific cash
dividend proposal as considered and approved at the general
meeting. If the Company needs to adjust or change the cash dividend
policy as determined in the Articles of Association, it is required to
satisfy the conditions under the Articles of Association and execute
appropriate decision-making procedures after substantiation. The
adjustment or changes shall be passed by shareholders representing
not less than two-thirds of voting rights held by all shareholders
present at the meeting; the independent Directors shall give
explicit opinion on matters such as the truthfulness, adequacy
and reasonableness of the reasons for adjustments and changes,
truthfulness and validity of the approval procedures as well as its
compliance with the conditions required in the Articles of Association,
and communicate and exchange ideas with minority shareholders
before the general meeting and give timely reply to issues that
concern minority shareholders. Independent Directors may collect
opinions from shareholders through the online voting system, if
necessary.

Specific conditions for the Company to adjust the cash dividend
policy: (1) the Company suffers from losses or has issued a loss
warning announcement; (2) the balance of cash, excluding cash
raised from capital markets and cash within special funding for
special purposes or special account management funding such as
government special financial funds (including bank deposits and
bonds with high liquidity), is not sufficient to pay the cash dividends
within two months from the date of general meeting approving the
profit distribution; (3) execution of the established dividend policy
will render it impossible for the material investment projects and
material transactions approved by the general meeting or the Board
to be implemented according to established transaction plans; (4)
the Board has reasonable grounds to believe that execution of the
established dividend policy will have a material adverse impact on the
continuing operation and profitability of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(X)  Mechanism for supervision and restraint on cash dividend

1.

The Board of Supervisors shall supervise the implementation of the
Company’s dividend distribution policy and shareholders’ returns
plan by the Board and the management, and the decision-making
procedures thereof;

The Board and the general meeting of the Company shall, in the
decision-making and substantiation process in respect of the
profit distribution policy, fully consider the opinions of independent
Directors and minority shareholders. When considering the specific
plan on cash dividend distribution in the general meeting, active
communication and exchange with shareholders, especially minority
shareholders, shall be conducted via different channels, including but
not limited to telephone, facsimile, e-mails, letters and the Internet,
to thoroughly listen to the views and needs of minority shareholders,
and reply to questions concerned by minority shareholders shall also
be made in a timely manner;

If profit is recorded but the Board of the Company does not put
forth a cash dividend distribution proposal, reasons therefor and
the capital retained by the Company that may otherwise be used as
dividends shall be disclosed in its periodic report, and independent
non-executive Directors shall express explicit independent opinions
thereon;

The Company shall fully disclose the formulation and execution
of the cash distribution policy in its periodic reports. The report
shall explain: whether the profit distribution is in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association or with the general meeting
resolution; whether the standard and proportion of profit distribution
is precise and clear; whether the decision-making procedures and
mechanisms are adequate; whether the independent Directors
have fulfilled their responsibilities and played their role; whether
the minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their
views and needs; whether the legitimate rights and interests of
minority shareholders are fully protected and so forth. In the event
that adjustment or change of the cash distribution policy is carried
out, full explanation shall also be given as to whether the conditions
and procedures for the adjustment or change are compliant and
transparent.
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Board of Supervisors
Composition of the Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors was composed of
seven members, four of whom were nominated by the shareholders and three
were nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of
three years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

As at the end of the Review Period and the date of this annual report,
the members of the Board of Supervisors were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng
Xiangdong, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Zhang Yonglong, Mr. Zhang Minglin, Mr. Bao
Xueliang and Mr. Cui Zonglin.

The list and biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under
the section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in that section, there is no other material relationship
among members of the Board of Supervisors.

Duties of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following duties and powers in accordance with law:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the financial affairs of the Company;

e monitoring the performance of duties of Directors and senior management,
and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior management who
have violated laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
or resolutions of the general meetings;

e demanding for remedy in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by the Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing general meetings in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
Company Law;
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)

Duties of the Board of Supervisors (Continued)

proposing motions to general meetings;

liaising with the Directors on behalf of the Company or instituting legal
proceedings against the Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 151 of the Company Law;

in case of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company
identified, to investigate; and if necessary, to engage professional
institutions such as accounting firms or law firms to assist in its work at
the expense of the Company;

reviewing the financial information, such as financial report, operation
report and profit distribution plan, to be submitted by the Board to the
general meetings; and may, in the name of the Company, appoint a
certified public accountant or a qualified auditor to re-examine such
documents if a suspicious item is identified;

exercising other duties and powers specified in the Articles of Association.

During the Review Period, the Board of Supervisors held ten meetings in total.
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Report of the Board of Directors

EEEHREE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, the Group was engaged in two principal businesses, namely,
coal mining machinery and auto parts.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Review Period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that had a material impact on
the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where it operates. The Group actively gives back
to society and engages in public welfare activities in addition to striving for good
performance, with an aim to foster credibility and build a good corporate image.
Besides, the Group acts in an environmentally responsible way and strives
to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources, reduces wastage, and advocates water and electricity conservation.

Business Review

Please refer to the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis. The sections of Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis form part of this Report of the Board of
Directors.
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Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
financial statements of this annual report.

The Board held a meeting on 28 March 2022, at which a relevant resolution
was passed, which proposed the payment of a final dividend (the “Dividend”)
of RMB4.35 per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December 2021, totalling
approximately RMB774,079,746.45. If the proposal in relation to the profit
distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2021 annual general meeting
to be held on 30 May 2022 (the “2021 Annual General Meeting”),the final
Dividend for H Shares of the Company will be distributed on or before 29 July
2022.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (R £ A B ANE
T EFTSFX) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the
tax rate of enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. In this regard, any H Shares registered
under the name of a non-individual enterprise, including under the name of
HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or trustees, or other organisations
and entities, shall be deemed as shares held by non-resident enterprise
shareholders (as defined under the “EIT Law”). The Company will distribute
the final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise shareholders subject to a
deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and paid by the Company on
their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the “EIT Law”) which is legally
incorporated in the PRC or established pursuant to the laws of foreign countries
(regions) but has its effective administrative entity located in the PRC and whose
name appears on the Company’s H Share register of members should deliver
a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished by a
practicing PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited in
due course, if the enterprise does not wish to have the 10% enterprise income
tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.
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Results and Dividends (continued)

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after
the Abolishment of Circular SAT No. [1993]045 ( < BEF B F 351993045
SRR IE R AR EAFTS MEE V@A) ) (the “Notice”)
issued by the State Taxation Administration on 28 June 2011, the dividend to
be distributed by a domestic non-foreign invested enterprise, which has issued
shares in Hong Kong, to overseas resident individual shareholders is subject
to individual income tax at a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates
for respective overseas resident individual shareholders may vary, depending
on the relevant tax agreements between the countries of their residence and
Mainland China. Accordingly, 10% individual income tax will be withheld from
the final Dividend upon such Dividend payment to any individual shareholders
of H Shares whose names appear on the H Share register of members of the
Company on the record date, unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation
regulations, taxation agreements or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the identity of shareholders or any disputes over the
mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A Shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominal
holder holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes
at the rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the competent
tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of the Northbound Trading who
are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend income tax rate of lower
than 10%, those enterprises or individuals may apply to the competent tax
authorities of the Company for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty
or may entrust a withholding agent to do so. Upon approval by the competent
tax authorities, the paid tax amount in excess of the tax payable based on the
tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Northbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of A Shares of the Company.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(including enterprises and individuals) investing in the H Shares of the Company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Southbound Trading”), the
Company has entered into the Agreement on Distribution of Cash Dividends of H
Shares for the Southbound Trading (& R%BHAR IR 23R £ 41 IR 3 1755 )
with China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, pursuant
to which, China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited or its
branches, as the nominal investors of H Shares for the Southbound Trading,
will receive cash dividends distributed by the Company and distribute the cash
dividends to relevant investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading through
its depository and clearing system.

Cash dividends for the investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading will
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Notice on
the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect (Cai Shui No. [2014]81) KB JEB R ZE M 532 5 G Bt
BB T S B 7 R T R 3R 038 AN ) (B 52 [2014]8155%)) and the Notice
on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui No. [2016]127) K EAFNEBIREZETH X 5
B B BRI SR A B T WO R 6038 A0 ) (BA B¢ [2016]12755% ), for
dividends received by domestic individual investors from investing in H Shares
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the companies of
such H Shares shall withhold individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf
of the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment
funds from investing in shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that for individual investors. The
companies of such H Shares will not withhold the income tax of dividends for
domestic enterprise investors and such investors shall report and pay relevant
tax by themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Southbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of H Shares of the Company.

ERBREEMNEIBRER

HREBEFRIARRNESFRZARESE (B
EEMEAN)REEBBRZAARBHREE ([ B
B ARRCHEPEESECEEZAREETARERR]
CBBUBHE R R S AN IR ) - PEESELHE
HERBAERRRED RAMERBRGBHEIREE £ &
FHEARBARARIRENRE AN - WEeHELEE
AR AN ERERRERBHRRRRESE -

BRGBHER R RREENR AT UAREIKE - R1%
(FERBEREMIHR 5 E M BB A B AR
REVBEA) (B H[2014]815%) RAAR R ERET SR S
BB 5 i SR AT OB B N ) (B4 352 [2016]127
SRERRTE - HAEAREEBBEEBRIRE
BB BB AT ETHEES HRBLE AR - HEX A )
RIR0% TR ERINEATGEH - HAMBEFREES
BEEBRINEBINE DB EMREEISHAR
BANMRT  LREAREERBH - HRABE A D
ERBEETRHIBBANAEHR AR KATLES
TTERSRAEA

BRGBREEREERR - RS MKE A FRE L
BN BIHA AR R — 2K ©



Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering on the
Stock Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting relevant expenses. During the Review Period, save as described in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the
update on the use of proceeds and the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in
relation to the proposed change to the use of proceeds from H Share offering,
the use of proceeds was in line with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company.

During the Review Period, as resolved by the Board of the Company, the
unutilized proceeds of RMB38,254,573.04 from the H share offering would
be used to repurchase partnership shares in SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P. in
accordance with the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in relation to the
proposed change to the use of proceeds from the H share offering.

The details of the use of proceeds from the H share offering of the Company
in 2021 included the deposit interest income received of RMB449.08,
expense of bank handling charges of RMB1,278.21, foreign exchange
losses of RMB797,988.90, expenses used for the above repurchase of
RMB38,254,573.04, and the consulting service fees of RMB291,033.85.

As of 31 December 2021, all the proceeds raised from H Share offering have
been used up.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 51 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions on pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
and the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme

The establishment of The A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved by
shareholders at The Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, The First
A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and The First H Shareholders Class
Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the Share
Option Incentive Scheme, the Company would grant a number of options to
the qualified participants to purchase A Shares of the Company. Under the
plan, participants are granted options which only vest if certain performance
standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the board’s discretion and
no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any
guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.

The Company provided RMB8,578,000 (2020: RMB10,136,000) as expenses
in 2021.

The source of the underlying Shares of the Scheme shall be ordinary A Shares
in RMB to be directly issued by the Company to the participants.
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As at 1 January M1A1H 5.795 16,030,000 5.98 16,030,000
Granted during the year REREH -
Exercised during the year RERITE 5.5851 (4,722,300) -
Forfeited during the year RERZUL 5.5851 (1,244,300) -
As at 31 December M12A31H 5.5851 10,063,400 5.795 16,030,000

Vested and exercisable M12H31H

at 31 December BB KA T1TE 5.5851 4,722,300 - -




2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates
and exercise prices:
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Share options Share options

Exercise 31 December 31 December

Grant Date Expiry date price 2021 2020

SR AR = ERfE

20214 20204

R A Z|EA TEE 12A31H 12A31H8

04 November 2019 19 December 2022 5.5851 - 5,289,900
2019411 A48 2022125191

04 November 2019 19 December 2023 5.5851 4,956,600 5,289,900
2019411 A48 2023F 1251981

04 November 2019 19 December 2024 5.5851 5,106,800 5,450,200
2019411 A48 2024125198

Total 10,063,400 16,030,000

st
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 1.49 years 2.51 years
REAR AR TR B R INFE T 82 T & R A 1.495F 2514

(i) Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB0.49 per share. The fair value at
grant date is independently determined using an adjusted form of the
Black Scholes Model which includes a Monte Carlo simulation model that
takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of
dilution (where material), the share price at grant date and expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the risk free
interest rate for the term of the option and the correlations and volatilities
of the peer group companies.

() EBREMENAFE

REE2021F12A31 A EFER DA R T B
HRETE AT ELAEREN ARB04TT - B F
i B BREY A B T {5 A4S S B AR 2 5e i B T (Black
Scholes)iE A BB EETF + ZMEAVEL A S bR 48 (Monte
Carlo)fR#0% - EPst RHROITHEE - F4 - #
SEMFE(NMBER) « IR B ENIE RABER
MRTEEER IR - FEER B - BT A
|mEABFIE - AR FIEEEA R B RO o
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2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

2019 IR EHARE BB S 8l (o)

(i) Fair value of options granted (Continued) (i EREHBENAFEE)

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31 December REZE2021512 A31 B L FER H R &

2021 included: ABUEBRIE

(@ options are granted for no consideration and vest based on (@ EAEDNRTSRERL - WREAARERE20(E
Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected companies EFARMRESEANSEER =FHME
over a three year period. Vested options are exercisable for a period B - EnBHENGBEMFHEAR TITE
of two years after vesting

(b) exercise price: RMB5.795 (the exercise price changed to RMB5.5851 b) TIEME : ARKEST95T (2021 F BRITEBE
per share in 2021) A AREES.58517T)

(©) grant date: 4 November 2019 € RHHBEE 201911 B48

(d) expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023, 19 December d EIESHE : 2022712 819H ~ 202341273198
2024 2024912 519H

(e) share price at grant date: RMB6.05 per share @ MRIRHBERE @ SRR AREG6.055T

()  expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: M  RERRHETEEAEREE

30.38% First phase 29.93% Second phase 40.83% Third phase
FE—PEER30.38% 2 P& ER29.93% 2 = ER40.83%
(0) expected dividend yield: Nil 0 TEHRRRBME @ &
() risk-free interest rate: ) ERERAE
2.8219% Two years 2.9280% Three years 3.0197% Four years
I F2.8219% =12.9280% P94£3.0197%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the
remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

FERERIR IR D ERE LR R RIZHENSRT
FHEFAE) B - ARBAFAISERERNEM
FEHARIORIEE AR -



Restricted Share Incentive Plan

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a restricted
share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, a total number
of 42,300,000 A shares of the Group issued and granted to the selected 186
employees (including directors) of the Group (the “Participants”).

The Validity Period of the Scheme is no more than 48 months from the date of
the completion of the grant registration of the restricted shares to the date when
all the restricted shares granted to the Participants are unlocked or repurchased
and cancelled.

The Lock-up Period for the restricted shares granted under the Scheme
commenced from the date on which the restricted shares were granted to the
Participants with an interval of 12 months between the Date of Grant and the
unlocking date.

Participants who were granted with the restricted shares were entitled to acquire
the restricted shares on the grant date and sell the restricted shares after the
lock-up period of the relevant restricted shares, subject to the fulfilment of the
relevant conditions under the Scheme.

On 7 June 2021, 42,300,000 A shares were issued at the price of RMB5.88
per A share under the Scheme, and the amount of RMB248,724,000 cash
received from the Participants is recorded as trade and other payables (Note
31).

In 2021, the Company provided RMB79,364,000 as expenses.

Upon expiry of the Lock-up Period, the Company shall proceed with unlocking
for the Participants who satisfy the Unlocking Conditions, and the restricted
shares held by the Participants who do not satisfy the Unlocking Conditions shall
be repurchased and cancelled by the Company.
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M20215F6 48 - AEBERRERAF RS EM—IER S
g E T B ([3%5TE) ) - RIBZATE - FTZISEI186
HIEOETRE(RIEES)(HBYR DETEETAH
42,300,000f% A~ S EIAN ©

ZETEIBREIR BRI RE T BTl BREER
B SERNRBIERZ2EMRGREXEFETH 2 H
IF - JERAEBR4EA

ZETEIR T H R B R IR & B B AR R R B
REzBRE  ARTRMFGRRE R ZHENERR12
‘A -

BERR AR RASBE REENE T A BARSIMER
SERPEERGIMERENEEMREERBIMERS -
Hm Rk BITR T MR RE AT

R2021F6 478 + AR RIRIEZT EIR SRRAR AR
5.88 T M 1B 1% 25 7742,300,000 0% AR% » B 8B ¥ 5 W ER &Y
I & AR 248,724,000 Tt A E 5 M H th fE 1~ 2008 (M
31) o

R20214F - ANA FIEHE AR 179,364,000 TC/E BRI -
RRREREME - AR AR RRIRE ST

BV REEBRIRE - AR 2 BR R R & IR AT RO BB R PR
FERR MRS A A BB RS
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Restricted Share Incentive Plan (continued) PR 14 B Z R B a8l ()

The arrangements of Unlocking Period under the grant of restricted shares and FZET B TR i1 AR 5 A R BR PR S AR I S i AR AR B
unlocking duration for each reporting period pursuant to the Scheme are set out RERMZHM TR

in the table below:
Arrangement of Unlocking Period

BRERREM R

First Unlocking Period

£ IRAERRIR &

Second Unlocking Period

£ IRARRRIR &

Third Unlocking Period

= IRAERRIR &

Unlocking

Unlocking duration percentage
1% B PR 5 I % B PR 5 Lt 451l
Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 12 months from the Date of 40%

Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of Grant
BRTHEREAZNEERZ S BREERT AL2AEA A &E—E2Z S

HEHILE
Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of 30%

Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of Grant
AR THEUEAZNEERZ S BREER T AREGEA A &E—E225

HEHILE
Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of 30%

Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the Date of Grant
BT HESBEAZNEERZ S BREERT AR4EA A &E—E22 S
HEHILE

The evaluation period for unlocking the restricted shares under the Scheme
shall be from 2021-2023 and the evaluation shall be conducted annually.
The performance evaluation for each Unlocking Period includes performance
evaluation requirements for the Company and individual performance evaluation
requirement for the Participants.

The restricted shares outstanding at the period end listed below:

&R EIE T RHIME R RERRENEZH/20211FE
20234 - ERRBIREATT - BEGREHNEEZZRE
RARFEZEREBLNHBHREAANGEREZERNE
BRIR & IR AF o

HIRETAEIMORBIERRRSIR T

Number of
Details Restricted shares
=4 REIEREEE
Opening balance 1 January 2021 202151 A1 B AR &84 -
Issue of Restricted shares under the Scheme BB EI TR Bl M AR R 42,300,000

Balance 31 December 2021 2021912 A31 B &% 42,300,000




Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 23.19% of the
Group’s total sales, while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 7.22% of the Group's total sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 24.72% of the Group's total
purchases, while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6.70% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or
substantial shareholders who were interested in more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company has any equity interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains ongoing and steady relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2021, details of movements in property,
plant and equipment during the year are set out in notes 17 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

As at 4 June 2021, the Company granted 42,300,000 restricted A Shares to
186 participants under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Plan at the grant
price of RMB5.88 per A share, and had completed the registration for the grant as
at 11 June 2021.

As at 15 December 2021, according to the 2019 Share Option Incentive
Scheme, the Company processed the exercise of share options and the related
registration procedures of the exercised share options for 301 participants. The
number of exercised shares was 4,722,300 A shares. The price is RMB5.5851
per A share, and the exercise registration has been completed on 24 December
2021.

Save as disclosed above, during the Review Period, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreement in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to subscribe for equity-linked financial products.

RPN KRR SR B AR (D B IR A F) 2021 653

Report of the Board of Directors

EEEREE

FRHAEEREF

REZE2021F 1273318 ILFE - AEERATFREHE
SRR AREEBEEEN23.19% © MAEBRAZF
FEGIHERBE AR EAIEERELT7.22% o REIE2021
FI2ANBLFE - AEE A AHEEELRBEREN
REBBIREEFAI24.72% » T 7N 52 B S A (L 7 e FE A %
FERERIME NS B AR R 496.70% ©

BEEMA BEIANES RECBMBEASIERER
RATBHETRAZ%NEZREARAEBNEKRE
B R B AH AR A A o

AREEERP MMEE - ERFERFERTEROM
18 o ZRSR B T AR RA (AR 2 P R R - A
BEAEEBEARE -

W% BERRE

HE2021F12A31BIEFE - W% - BEREENFR
K BB R B R K I 717 -

BE - HEIFEEELFTRS

202166 A48 AR BIRHE2021 FBR ) 1 AR BB ET
21171186 % £ Eh ¥ 5 7% T 42,300,000 A% ARS R i M A 22
LB AETRRAR ARES887THE M20215E6 A11H
R TER -

202112 4158 + AR EIRE20195F AR S B D T
£ /5301 2 B T 5 IR AR ZE MR 1 THE AR B MO TTHE AR
MERFE  TERHEE4,722,3000%A% - 1THEEAR
TREARR AR ¥5.58517T B B 7202112 24 A 2k 171

eV

EXCPR#RERSN - MBI - RNQ RS EAERHE AR
BEEE  HEXBLEARREN LHES -

IR R 89 175 R

REZE2021F 12831 B ILFE - AR R LKE QA A#E
FETAREHBER B - NMESHERZHNIEEE
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Material Related Party Transactions

For details of the related party transactions under relevant accounting
standards, please refer to note 43 of this report. The Company confirms that the
related-party transactions were not categorised as the “connected transactions”
or the “continuing connected transactions” as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules (as the case may be), and were in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors were as follows:

Directors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors were:

From 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2021:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director
and Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu Zugang (Executive
Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Wang Bin (Executive Director), Li
Xudong (Independent Non-executive Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-
executive Director) and Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 31 March 2021 to 2 August 2021:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive
Director and Vice Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director),
Fu Zugang (Executive Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Mr. Cui Kai
(Non-executive Director), Mr. Yang Dongsheng (Non-executive Director), Mr.
Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Ji Feng (Independent
Non-executive Director), Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
and Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 3 August 2021 to 24 October 2021:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive
Director and Vice Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee
Director), Fu Zugang (Executive Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Mr.
Cui Kai (Non-executive Director), Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive
Director), Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director), Ms. Guo Wenqing
(Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-
executive Director)

From 25 October 2021 to the date of this report:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive
Director and Vice Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director),
Fu Zugang (Executive Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Mr. Cui Kai
(Non-executive Director), Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Non-executive Director), Mr.
Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Ji Feng (Independent
Non-executive Director), Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
and Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director).

EXEBRS

BRI LA THREBR ZBERB 2R ARG E43 -
AAREREH I ZXZTIBARTE LTRRE DA
FRIBERS R HERERS INEE(RBAER
fE) RIFAER LTRAUE T HARNRERTE °

EEREE
RO R EEARE AR EERESEMT -

BF:
REESHREEARE AL EFNT -

20215F1 B1H E2021563H318

FAZBITES  EFR) BHEWTES  8E=F
) AEXRETES) FERGRITES) - THE
(MTES) DEBTES) - FRLBLIFNTE
F)IEEULFRTES)  BEECELIIFNTE
%)

202153 H31H £2021568H2A :

FAZWITES EFR) AXMNATESE  JE
R BEMTESE RBRIESF)  MEBGTE
) IHEHTESR)  EILECEHTESR)  H
RAXRECGEHITES) BEERECELIFNTE
%)  FERECBLIFNTES)  BIXELEBIF
WITES) HEXLECBIFRTES)

202158 A3H £2021510824H8 :

FAZRITES  EFR)  AXR(ATEF - A&
ER)CBHEMTES BIESR)  MEEGTE
) EHEGTESE)  EIRLCGETES) 12
BELEELIFMTES) FERECELIFNITE
%) BXELXLOBUIFMTES) » TREECELFEF
WITER)

2021510825 EAHE B -

FAZRITES EFR) AXNATES A&
ER)CBEEMITES RBRIESF) MEBGTE
) IHEATESR)  EILECERTESR) B
EBAECGETES) BEERECELIFNTE
%)  FERECBLIIFNTES)  BIXELTCBIFE
WITER)  TEALCBELIFRTES) -



Directors and Supervisors (Continued)
Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors were:

From 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2021:

Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Cui Leilei, Mr. Ni Wei, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr.
Zhang Yichen and Mr. Yuan Shaochong

From 31 March 2021 to the date of this report:

Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng Xiangdong, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Zhang Yonglong, Mr.
Zhang Minglin, Mr. Bao Xueliang and Mr. Cui Zonglin.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into or
proposed to enter into any service agreement with any member of the Group,
other than agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (excluding statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to its business
and in which a Director or a Supervisor was materially interested in any way,
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” of this report, at no time during the Review Period were there
rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or any such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
under the Listing Rules, which are stated as follows:

EENGEFRB 2 ES

BIEIS AT ETRRIEs 100 - ARTRERE £
A 2 B 42 75 A M S0 S B S T A o T
PR S R £ A (RS -

EEREEREROIES 2EF

BARESEF  BEERESTRAERERRKLEE
BOEBO RSP 2 EEm KR |BE D PTREES: - NEE
HE SMEEFMEEHEFEANKBIRKETL
ERSTHRTEBBEAR RN REFESERN
MARR » HERARSEEMMNBRR RFARKEA
BIMESEEA R REEREREFARNEMEME
BEEGL SRR -

EXS ESERESTHRASRAQAR
HEBZENRSZP 2ERZR KA

BEEMA  P20215F12A310 - ARAFISES  BE
RARBRSITHRABRAR S EAABBER(E
& REB(EH ARG (RHERPERED) ) mik
0~ HERGD RMESFH A EAREGE S LR GG
SEXVERET R 87 BRAM G A X ) R Bk 32 P O M 2 Sk
B (BREEREGES R PEGRADEE R IEX MK E (F
KRR AR NRE) - IRB(ESZ KR EG)
SFEIB2MFAFAZIGDI AT e B CMA R oA R (B
AR BCRE R B GPIR B B IESMR & (ESARE T
BHEZIAR) - JRBE ETRAEETRENE
AR ME AR R FORBINT

Approximate Approximate

Director/ percentage of percentage of  Long position/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of  the relevantclass  the total number  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares of capital % of shares%  Lending pool

Bz 2/ 5/ EEBREER EROBEN R/ %A/
i BSTBAR BRtE R 5 ROHE  WEOEIE% BAADL%  AERELNRG
Jiao Chengyao™ Director Beneficial owner A Share 5,901,964 0.38 0.33  Long position
FEARED S EREAA AR e
Xiang Jiayu® Director Beneficial owner A Share 3,895,120 0.25 0.22  Long position
EEG S EREAA AR e
Jia Hao@ Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,631,000 0.17 0.15  Long position
B0 S EREAA AR e



Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations (continued)
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Approximate Approximate
Director/ percentage of percentage of  Long position/
Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of  the relevant class  the total number  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares of capital % of shares %  Lending pool
943 V4 a6/ EERRAES EROBEN FR KB/
®E BETHAR BEME R RAEE  HWERBEIH% BAEILY%  AEHORA
Fu Zugang®@ Director Beneficial owner A Share 4,724,720 0.31 0.27  Long position
fHE R o2 £ BHEBA AR HE
Interest of spouse AShare 200,000 0.013 0.011  Long position
e BE) e AR HE
Wang Xinying Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.12 011 Long position
THe % HiHEEA AR 8
Liu Qiang Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 11,500 0.001 0.001  Long position
25 Es BHEBA AR HE
Zhang Minglin Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 100,000 0.007 0.006  Long position
KAk Es BHEBA AR HE
Notes: G

v

During the Review Period, the Company implemented the 2021 Restricted Share
Incentive Plan, through which Mr. Jiao Chengyao, a director, was granted 3,000,000
restricted A Shares, Mr. Xiang Jiayu was granted 2,000,000 restricted A Shares,
Mr. Jia Hao was granted 2,400,000 restricted A Shares, and Mr. Fu Zugang was
granted 2,000,000 restricted A Shares. The number of shares of the four directors
listed in the table above included the restricted A Shares granted to them. The
unlocking arrangement of the restricted A Shares of the Company as held by the
four directors is subject to the unlocking conditions required by the 2021 Restricted
Share Incentive Plan of the Company.

During the Review Period, the Company fulfilled the conditions of exercise conditions
for the first exercise period of the 2019 A Share Option Incentive Scheme, Mr.
Jia Hao exercised 231,000 A share Options, Mr. Fu Zugang exercised 198,000 A
share Options. The number of shares of the two directors listed in the table above,
included the shares increased by their exercise of A Share Options.

REIFEEA - ANAREH T 2021F R HI A ZEB =12 -
FRFREISTAEER T AR 1% A% 323,000,0008% * MR
RO AR T ARKRR I 14 I 222,000,0008% » B & L A &R
FARRPR M4 A& 2E2,400,0000% + (AR S5 A MR T ABRPR 51
1 A%2E2,000,0008% © ERETFINEEEHNRMNEKE - 25
HERTHOARREIMERE - MAZEEMIFENARAAA
PR PR Il M AR 22 D R BR PR 5 2 BE + PR A B12021 S PR
MR S T B T B AR R PR & 16 o

REEHA - AR F2019F AR R EIRE BN = 8155 —{E
TTHRBTRIGMAER - BEXEEETTR T 231,00000AKH
T ¢ TAER SEEFTE T 198,00019ARR B o ERFTFIPIE
ERNBNBE - B EITEARIREE R
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Interests in Underlying Shares MR RS
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Number of share  the relevant class the total number
Name of Directors Nature of interest Class of shares options held of capital % of shares %
HERERALER R DA B
EEng EEME % 12 %8 51 R EERE HEA B 2% BB L%
Jia Hao Beneficial owner A Share 469,000 0.031 0.026
Bif EnlEAA AR
Fu Zugang Beneficial owner A Share 402,000 0.026 0.023
gl EnlEAA AR
Note: G
Whether the stock options in the above table can be exercised, depends on whether the ERAPORZEREETITE - BURRR2019FARR I8 E HA#E 2B

exercise conditions of the 2019 A share stock option incentive Scheme can be fulfilled.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the directors,
the supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed to have); or were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies under
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders recorded in the register of members of the Company

SHEITTREIGITRED BZ

B £ P EEE SN

CHR2021F12 A31H » AR

AeE

F  BEFRRARAESTRABMENAR R NAEMIE

BEE (& R EB(ES MG ERD)) B
"E TEH*E?F(E%#&%@THH&J YEEXVER 8
ZANCIVSE RNk 3
AR ECRE 77 B R
BAZGRIPTR B M ERAR
PP ETRBIA LT AR ESETESZ SN

DREFH -
TR ESDEBME
BERAHEANERSK
)85 35214678

AR

ORB)

« HRRAR

ORE (BIE

BRAESTRRME AR R ME X P ERIOXR -

BREBRRREAH
2021128318 - AR RIRRAMATRCESAREFS

as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: W
Holders of A Shares AR RS ER 57,727
Holders of H Shares HA% A% B 59
Total number of shareholders IR SR ABE 57,786




Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of members
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FERRRAQFFFRS - HERS
ZHEBRKXR

BEBRA - R20215F12831H » THIRE(EE - B
FEREETRABRIN AR T EA AR5 &AM
M BERBCGE S R ERGIDEXVEE2 %37 578
MEAQRMERSAR - FURIEGEH RIS LGS
336IEERR AR A REFRE R MaERS AR

kept by the Company:
Approximate Approximate
percentage of the percentage of  Long position/
Capacity/ Class of Number of  relevant class of  the total number  Short position/
Name Nature of interest shares shares shares % of shares %  Lending pool
a8 R/ KR/
RAERIN  ROGBH  THEY
#E 51,/ ERLE ROER RORE  BHESH%  BOESH% HRE
Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd.®  Interest of beneficial owner A Share 346,404,576 22.55 19.47  Long position
and party acting in concert
AHEEERBRAFN ERBBEAR—H ARk A
TYATHER
Hong Yi Investment Management Beneficial owner A Share 277,195,419 18.04 15.58  Long position
(Henan) Partnership (Limited
Partnership)
AREBER(TMm)AREE  EREAA ARk A
(BRER)
State-owned Assets Supervisionand ~ Beneficial owner A Share 243,892,381 15.88 13,71 Long position
Administration Commission of
Henan Provincial People’s
Government®
AmEARBNEEERE EGBEA ARk A
EEERZEE0
Henan Machinery Investment Beneficial owner A Share 243,892,381 15.88 13.71  Long position
Group Co., Ltd.@
AEENEERERE EGBEA Ak A
BREFARNR
UBS Group AG®! Interest in a controlled H Shares 21,578,806 8.87 1.21 Long position
corporation
REEEE R R H e
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

)

Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly holds 69,209,157 A Shares of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 317(1)(a) of the SFO, Henan Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. is deemed a party acting in concert with Hong Yi Investment Management
(Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership). Hence, Henan Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. is deemed to own the same batch of 277,195,419 A Shares of the Company
directly held by Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited
Partnership). Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly owns and is deemed to
own an aggregate of 346,404,576 A Shares of the Company.

iEﬁiF$ﬁTﬂﬂ%¥ﬁ@&ﬁ
Z*Eﬁﬂ&/k)a

MisE

(M

Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. directly holds 243,892,381 A Shares ¥}
of the Company. Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Henan Provincial People’s Government. Pursuant to the SFO, the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government is deemed to own the same batch of 243,892,381 A Shares of the
Company directly held by Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
UBS Group AG is interested in a total of 21,578,806 (long position) H Shares held in the ®)
Company. 1,933,400 (long position) H Shares are held by non-listed derivative instrument
through cash settlement. As disclosed in the notice of interest submitted by UBS Group
AG (with the relevant event dated 15 November 2021), UBS Group AG is interested in the
following H Shares:
Name of controlled Name of
corporation controlling person % control
FEFEEER BEALER ZHES
UBS AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS 0’Connor LLC UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Switzerland AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd UBS Group AG 100.00

AEEEBTERRA ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ‘-ﬁw 209,157 AR A A FIARR ©
BIEEE M BAEERGIEIT70) @)K  ATEEEEREARA
T%&%ﬁf’m%&ﬁ?&éﬂ%(Jrﬁ)A%@%(ﬁﬁﬁ/\%)E’J
—BIgAL AT EEEEEBERAGGGIESRES
HEARBEER(IMARCE(BRAR) EEFAR
— 3277195 419X RN A RIARR A EEEEBRAFE
B AR (A A $£346,404,576% A A AIARR o

TR EEIRE RSB AR BT A B E R 243,892,381
BRAARIAR o MM EREEBERET AT AN
HEARRBEEEELEEEHEZES2EMBAR
REEHRPEE  TEEARBRETEEEEERE
BLZESWGRIERERTEEMEERERERRET
NRIEERE E—1#243,892,381 R A A AIARK -

UBS Group AGRA AR B 54 & $£21,578,806 % (17 &2 ) HAR &
%5 1,933,400/% (4F & )HHxLﬂLAiﬁA#%Eﬁ;Emei
T E#A - RIEUBS Group AGIR AT Y AE 25 %1 (1RRA S 14
HHIA2021411 158 ) i EE - LATJEAHHXEW&E $FAUBS
Group AGE: -

Direct interest

(Y/N) Number of shares
HiEER

(R/&) RHEE

Y Long position 3,228,400
= HE

Y Long position 6,137,416
2 TR

Y Long position 6,546,600
= HE

Y Long position 2,799,999
2 TR

Y Long position 2,548,791
= HE

Y Long position 317,600
2 TR




Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company had maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
a total contribution of RMB135.16 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the financial year and as of the date of this annual report, the Company
had in force indemnity provisions as permitted under relevant regulations for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or
its associated companies. Such permitted indemnity provisions are set out in
the Liability Insurance maintained by the Company for its Directors and chief
executives, in respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

Subsequent Events

In March 2022, the Group signed an equity transfer agreement to sell all of
its 50.97% shares of Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co., Ltd. to a third
party, Hubei Jingchuan Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd. with a consideration
of RMB310,673,000. The consideration has been fully received, and the
transaction was completed. After the transaction, Hubei Super Electric Auto
Motor Co., Ltd. ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group.
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Closure of the Register of Members

The 2021 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Monday, 30
May 2022. In order to determine the H Shareholders’ entitlement to attend the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 25 May 2022 to Monday, 30 May 2022 (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the H Shareholders
of the Company who wish to attend the 2021 Annual General Meeting but
are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 May 2022.

If the resolution in relation to declaration of dividends is approved at the 2021
Annual General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s H Share register of members after the
close of trading on Monday, 20 June 2022. The Company’s register of members
will be closed from Wednesday, 15 June 2022 to Monday, 20 June 2022
(both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For
the H Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the final Dividend but
are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 June 2022.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 with the management and the external
auditor.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
28 March 2022
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2021 EEEESTERE

During 2021, in accordance with the power conferred and duties imposed by
relevant requirements of the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company Law”), the Articles of Association of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the “Articles of Association”) and the Rules of Procedure of the Board of
Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, and
in the principle of being accountable to the Company and all its shareholders,
the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited commenced its supervision according to law, diligently performed its
authority and obligations, and duly exercised its supervisory function over the
Directors and senior management of the Company, playing a positive role in the
standardized operation and development of the Company. The 2021 report of
the Board of Supervisors is set out below:

I. Basic Evaluation on Operation Behavior of the
Board of Directors and the Management and the
Performance Achieved in 2021

Through its supervision over the Directors and senior management
of the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board
of the Company was able to strictly comply with the requirements of
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and other relevant laws,
regulations and systems, and operated in accordance with the laws. All
major operation decisions of the Company were rational and the decision-
making process was lawful and valid. The Company has established
and enhanced its internal management system and internal control
mechanism. The Directors and senior management of the Company
conscientiously executed their respective duties in accordance with the
national laws, regulations, the Articles of Association, and the resolutions
of the general meetings and the Board meetings. None of the Directors or
senior management of the Company were found to have violated any laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association in discharging their duties for the
Company or engaged in any acts which contravened the interests of the
Company or its shareholders.

Facing the complex and ever-changing internal and external environment
in 2021, ZMJ worked closely in line with its development strategies of
“international strategic positioning, market-based corporate governance,
diversified industry layout and global human resources”. Based on a
new development stage, the Company implemented new development
concepts, with high-quality development of the manufacturing industry
as its main direction, promoted the efforts towards a better and stronger
enterprise during the transformation and upgrading, continuously improved
various indicators of production and operation, maintained a steady and
positive development trend and dedicated to the centennial of the Party
with excellent results.

20214F + BRI R TR E B (H B IR A R BB SR
(rhE ARFEFMB A TEY A TERBICATNEY]) - (Z8
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SRS KEFRESETIE  REBITSERENE
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ATEMREBEEMEELD TREGER - BBEES
20211 FE THEREWT ¢
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EEWERTE
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Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2021

(1)

Completed the replacement of the Supervisory
Board in accordance with laws and regulations

During the reporting period, the term of the fourth session of the
Board of Supervisors of the Company expired. In order to ensure the
continuity and effectiveness of the supervision work of the Board of
Supervisors, the Board of Supervisors organized the election of the
replacement of the Board of Supervisors in line with the statutory
procedures coincide with the provisions of the Company Law, the
Articles of Association and the relevant laws and regulations on
securities supervision.

Upon election at the Company’s general meeting and at the
employee representative meeting, the Company elected the fifth
session of the Board of Supervisors in March 2021, which comprised
four shareholder representative Supervisors and three employee
representative Supervisors. Among them, shareholder representative
Supervisors are Cheng Xiangdong, Wang Yue, Zhang Yonglong and
Cui Zonglin; and employee representative Supervisors are Liu Qiang,
Zhang Minglin and Bao Xueliang. Liu Qiang chairs the Board of
Supervisors. Employee representative Supervisors account for no less
than one third of the Board of Supervisors, which complies with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations.

Overview of the Meetings of the Board of
Supervisors Convened in 2021

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
convened a total of ten meetings at which 32 resolutions were
considered and approved in accordance with the Company Law,
the Articles of Association and other relevant regulations, and 1
resolution was submitted directly to the shareholders' meeting for
consideration as the connected supervisor abstained from voting.
Details are set out as follows:

T2 FEEEERT/EER

(P ECEKR T B B A fE T1E

HERA > ARIFUEEESEHER - A
REZSEB TIENIEENE Bkl EEe
BIR(RRNE) (RAIER) BHEEEWE
BEERORE  BREATRFANFARESS
HEEE T -

BNTIRERASEBEMBTRRASESE A
AR F3REAFAEESS - H4BRE
REEFERIEBINRRESER & - &
HRRES=AS  BHPE - T8 RKkE ER
M BIARKRESS: 2% - RoM - HwS
RoHpZmAEEeEy -BINRESN
HITMER =52 —  BEESRERFTEEH
EREIRITE ©

(D201 FEEETeRARBR

HEA - REIBEEFGRBIAFE) - (RF
BEIRNMEBRTE HERI0REEEgE
FRBBIERE - 1HEREE N F O
R BERZBRRRGER - FHBER
T

No. Time Session Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting

i EaRRE 2REX 2RERBE

1 15 March 2021 Nineteenth Meeting of the Fourth ~ The Proposal on Amending the Articles of Association and the
202143 A15H Session of the Board of Procedural Rules for Shareholders’ General Meetings

Supervisors
FENEEEEETNAGH

(BERMEFT<RRIEES>M<ERASHER SRS

The Proposal on Nomination of Candidates for Shareholder
Representative Supervisors for the Fifth Session of the Board of
Supervisors
(ARREENEESERRRRESHREANER)
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2021 FEEEETERSE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in 201 FEEEETEER®E)
2021 (Continued)
(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of (D201 FEEEgeRARBER @
Supervisors Gonvened in 2021 (Continued)
No. Time Session Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
FiE 23R BEERX BREREE
2 26 March 2021 Twentieth Meeting of the Fourth The Proposal on the 2020 Report of the Board of Supervisors of the
202143 A26H Session of the Board of Company
Supervisors (EBRATR0FEESTE TIERENER)

FNEEEFRE_TREH

The Proposal on the 2020 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial
Report of the Company
CRER A RI20205F E AT T IR AN IS IS R )

The Proposal on the 2020 Annual Report and Summary thereof of the
Company
CRAR A R2020F FEIME R B HIHEE)

The Proposal on the 2020 Verification Report on the Deposit and
Actual Use of Proceeds of the Company
(R AR0FEEEEFHEEABEAEZRENZ

%)

The Proposal on the Special Report on the Occupation of Non-
operating Funds and Other Connected Fund Movements of the

Company
(BR<ARIBEEEHERERARAMBEHE ST RERLD
BIFRENSER)

The Proposal on the 2020 Social Responsibility Report and
Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(AR FEHEEAZRE £ RERBE>NFE

%)

The Proposal on the 2020 Assessment Report on Internal Control of
the Company
CRAR A B20205F [E A EBE SR E R E =)

The Proposal on the 2020 Audit Report on Internal Control of the
Company
(AR A RI20205F E BB IE B MENZER)

The Proposal on the 2020 Profit Distribution Plan
CRER 20205 E R E D BL 7 RAIER)

The Proposal on Confirming the Provision Amount of 2020 Super
Profit Incentive Payment
CRARTER20205F E BRI BB RS MR S FEHEER)
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Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2021 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of

Supervisors Convened in 2021 (Continued)

No.
=2

Time
SEEE

Session
BEX

20N FEEEEETHERRE

(D20 FEEEEERAMBERL @

Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
2RERBE

31 March 2021
202143 A31H

17 April 2021
202144178

First Meeting of the Fifth Session of

the Board of Supervisors

FRIEEEESE

Second Meeting of the Fifth Session
of the Board of Supervisors

FRIEEEER

— Nk 22
IRE &

— N 22
TREE

The Proposal on the Appointment of External Audit Institution and
Internal Control Audit Institution for 2021
(AR ESE2021 F EHMNER B AT e AR | At B 8V R

%)

The Proposal on Provision for Goodwill Impairment Loss
(ERFHERE R EEBREER)

The Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of the Company
in 2020 and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of the
Company in 2021

(FAR R FI2020F E B BB X 5150 2021 F IR A &
BB S IE RIS

The Proposal on Provision of Repurchase Guarantee for Customers in
Financial Leasing Business
(ARBEHEXBT AT PRHEIBRENZS)

The Proposal on Provision of Guarantees for Controlling Subsidiaries
and Mutual Guarantees between Controlling Subsidiaries

(AR RIERF A RIREERRIZERF AR Z B ERMEE
L EEY

The Proposal on the Use of Idle Funds to Invest in Financial Wealth
Management Products
(FAREARBEE R ESRIEVERNZER)

The Proposal for the Election of the Chairman of the Fifth Session of
the Board of Supervisors
(FARNERENEESEERNHAR)

The Proposal on the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme for 2021 of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (Draft)
and the Summary Thereof

CRAR < BB M BETR A 55 B AR 19 B BR 2 512021 SF PR I 1 AR =2
HEEE(ER)>REBENRR)

The Proposal on the Performance Evaluation Measures for the
Implementation of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

CRAR < BB M BETR A 55 B AR 19 B BR 2 512021 FF PR I 1 AR 32
BB EIERERERIVASNRE)
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Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2021 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of

Supervisors Gonvened in 2021 (Continued)

No. Time
FiE 23R

Session
SEEX

2021 FEEES TERE

T 20NFEEFEETEERE)

(D201 FEEEeeH AR L@

Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
BRERBE

5 26 April 2021
202154 A 26H

6 4 June 2021
202196 A4H

7 3 August 2021
20214F8 A3H

8 26 August 2021
202148 H26H

Third Meeting of the Fifth Session
of the Board of Supervisors
FIEGEZEGFE=REE

Fourth Meeting of the Fifth Session
of the Board of Supervisors
FHEEEGENASE

Fifth Meeting of the Fifth Session of
the Board of Supervisors
FIEEZEFIREE

Sixth Meeting of the Fifth Session
of the Board of Supervisors
FREEEEEAGE

The Proposal on the Verification of the List of Participants of the
2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited

CRIP R B <80 M B R A, 5= (B AR 19 5 BR 2 512021 4F PR 6 14
MRE R BB R B ESHER)

The Proposal on the 2021 First Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
CERCENEBERMEERNDBRAT0DNFE —FE R

EOHIFEER)

The Proposal on the Granting of Restricted Shares to the Participants
of the Company's 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
CER MR A)12021 S IR B 1% AR = Bt 21 3UED ¥ R I% TR

[EEN: 0 =

The following resolution was submitted directly to the shareholders’
meeting for consideration as the connected supervisor abstained
from voting:

UTIEREAFESESLRAOR  BEERIRRAEER

The Proposal on the Remuneration Plan for Supervisors of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
CRAR BRI BRI R B AR 1D B IR R R BE S 5 5 =R 2D

The Proposal on Adjusting Exercise Price of 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme of the Company
CRAR TR A EI2019F IR R IS E R T BNTIRERNRR)

The Proposal on the 2021 Half-year Report of the Company
CRER A R0 FEFERENRR)

The Proposal on the 2021 Special Half-year Report on the Deposit
and Actual Use of Proceeds of the Company
(ERARRANFFFEEEESTFHEERERBERZE

WEHHER)

The Proposal on the Increase of Expected Daily Connected
Transactions of the Company in 2021
CRERMEINA 20215 [ A B AN X HTEET IR ER)

103



104

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2021

Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2021

2021 FEEEE THEHE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in Z 2021 FEEEEETEBR@)
2021 (Continued)
(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of (D201 FEEEgeRARBR @
Supervisors Convened in 2021 (Continued)
No.  Time Session Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
Fi aBRRE B3ER BRERSE
9 25 QOctober 2021 Seventh Meeting of the Fifth The Proposal on the 2021 Third Quarterly Report of the Company
2021410/ 25H Session of the Board of (AR R RR0AFE =FERENHE)
Supervisors

FREEEEFLREH

10 15 December 2021 Eighth Meeting of the Fifth Session  The Proposal on the Adjustment of the List of Participants and the

2021412 A15H of the Board of Supervisors Number of Options under the 2019 Stock Option Incentive Plan and
FHEEEEE /USSR Cancellation of Part of the Options

(AR TEE2019F R BB T 8IS B R 2 B B2
EWFEHED PENZER)

The Proposal on Meeting the Conditions of Exercise for the First
Exercise Period of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme
CRAR 20194 AR 2 ERME B D 51 21 28 — (B 7 TR BRATRE IR A

SEE)

The Proposal on the Transfer of Part of the Shares of the Participating
Company and Connected Transactions
(FAREE2R AT S RN EBEBZHNER)

Over the past year, the Board of Supervisors of the Company —FR REEESREAMNBEHESS -« K18
strengthened its supervision over the Board of Directors and EBRBMNEE  KEEBREAREELES
the management in the performance of their duties, supervised MMEBBAFERRIEN - NMEARFIERRE
and inspected the production operation of the Company and the ML ARENERBRES -

decision-making on important matters according to law, pursued
standardization and enhancement of the institutions of the Company,
and worked diligently for its development.
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lll. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2021

1.

Lawful Operation of the Company

In 2021, the Supervisors of the Company were present as non-
voting delegates at or attended the Company’s Board meetings and
general meetings according to law, with rigorous supervision carried
out over the Company’s decision-making procedures as well as
the performance of duties of the Company’s Directors and senior
management. The Board of Supervisors considers that the Board of
the Company has complied with relevant requirements stipulated
in the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Directors, with regulated operations as well
as lawful and valid decision-making procedures. The Company has
established and improved its internal control system, under which
the Directors and senior management of the Company discharged
their duties conscientiously with no acts found in violation of laws,
regulations and the Articles of Association or prejudice to the
Company’s interests.

Inspection of Financial Status of the Company

Having reviewed the financial status of the Company, the Board
of Supervisors considers that the financial report of the Company
reflects the actual state of its financial position and operation results,
and that the audit report is truthful and reasonable and enables
shareholders to correctly understand the financial and operational
status of the Company. The 2021 Annual Report prepared by the
Board of the Company reflects the Company’s position in a truthful,
accurate and complete manner, without any false record, misleading
statement or material omissions.
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lil. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2021 (Continued)

3.

Inspection of the Company's Share Incentives

In 2021, the Board of Supervisors inspected the implementation
of the Company's share incentive in accordance with the laws and
regulations.

During the reporting period, the Company implemented the 2021
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (hereinafter referred to as
"Restricted Share Incentive Scheme"), and in accordance with the
provisions of the Measures for the Administration of Share Incentives
for Listed Companies (hereinafter referred to as the "Administration
Measures"), the Board of Supervisors has inspected the content
of the incentive scheme, the performance evaluation measures,
the list of participants and the granting conditions, and considered
that the Company has the eligibility to implement the Restricted
Share Incentive Scheme, the subject qualification of participants is
legal and effective, the assessment system of the Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme is comprehensive, integrated and operable,
the performance indicators are set with good scientific basis and
rationality, and have binding effect on the participants, therefore
the assessment purpose of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
can be achieved. The implementation of the incentive scheme is
conducive to the sustainable development of the company, and there
is no situation that is detrimental to the interests of the company and
all shareholders as a whole, so the Board of Supervisors agreed to
the implementation of the Company's share incentive scheme.

During the reporting period, the vesting period of the 2019 Share
Option Incentive Scheme (hereinafter referred to as "Option Incentive
Scheme") expired, and the Board of Supervisors verified the
adjustment of the list of participants and the number of options of
the Option Incentive Scheme, and the achievement of the exercise
conditions of the first exercise period, and considered that the
adjustment of the list of participants and the number of options was
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Option Incentive
Scheme. The performance evaluation index of the first exercise period
of the option incentive plan and the personal performance evaluation
result of the participants are in accordance with the exercise
conditions of the first exercise period of the Option Incentive Scheme,
and there is no situation that the company and the participants
cannot exercise the options as stipulated in the Option Incentive
Scheme and relevant laws and regulations, and the 301 participants
after adjustment are eligible under the exercise conditions, their
subject qualification as participants who may exercise the options is
legal and valid, and the Board of Supervisor agreed the exercise of
the option for the qualified participants by the Company.
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lll. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2021 (Continued)

4.

Inspection of the Utilization of Proceeds

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the utilization of the
Company’s proceeds. The Company, with a system established
to manage its proceeds, was proper in utilizing its proceeds and
executing its management procedures and change of use of
remaining proceeds from the issuance of H shares, with no breach of
regulations found in respect of the proceeds.

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by the Company

There was no material acquisition or disposal of assets by the
Company in 2021. Nor was there any prejudice to shareholders’
interests or dissipation of the Company’s assets.

Connected Transactions of the Company

The connected transactions of the Company in 2021 took place in
strict compliance with the Articles of Association and the relevant
connected transaction agreements, and the transactions were fair
and reasonable. Such connected transactions were conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with the statutory approval process performed
and no act prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Internal Control of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2021 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board as
well as the establishment and operation of the Company’s internal
control system, and considers that the Company has established a
robust internal control system that enables effective execution. The
self-assessment report on the Company’s internal control reflects
the establishment and operation of such system in the Company in a
truthful and objective manner.
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lil. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2021 (Continued)

8. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the Review
of the 2021 Annual Report of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the Company’s 2021
Annual Report and the summary thereof, and considers that the
preparation and review procedures of the 2021 Annual Report
of the Company complied with relevant laws and regulations and
the Articles of Association, as well as the requirements under the
internal control system of the Company; that the content and format
thereof are in line with the relevant requirements of China Securities
Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock Exchange; and
that the information contained therein gives a true, accurate and
complete view of the actual situation of the Company in various
aspects and does not give rise to any detriment to the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. No staff engaged in the preparation,
review or information disclosure of the 2021 Annual Report of the
Company was found to have violated the confidentiality requirement
during the course of his/her work.

IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2022

In 2022, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will continue to
strictly comply with the requirements of the Company Law, the Articles
of Association and the relevant regulations and policies of the country,
perform its duties faithfully, and further facilitate regulated operations of
the Company.

(1) Comply with Laws and Regulations and Discharge
Duties Conscientiously

In 2022, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the relevant
requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of Association,
supervise the Board and the management in performing the
obligation in accordance with law, and facilitate the Company to
further improve corporate governance structure and improve its level
of governance.
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IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2022
(Continued)

@

Strengthen Supervision and Inspection to Avert
Operational Risks

Firstly, the Board of Supervisors will focus on financial supervision,
and monitor and inspect the financial position of the Company in
line with the law. Secondly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain
communication and liaison with the internal auditors and external
accounting firms, so as to make full use of internal and external audit
information to keep abreast of relevant situations. Thirdly, the Board
of Supervisors will pay particular attention to high risk areas of the
Company and carry out inspections on critical aspects such as major
investments, connected transactions, external guarantees, financial
endorsement and fund utilization.

Bolster Professional Capabilities through Greater
Self-improvement

Members of the Board of Supervisors will constantly broaden their
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities
by receiving more training in banking, finance, law, auditing and
securities, so as to enhance the supervisory role, actively explore
innovative ways of supervision, and better perform the supervisory
function of the Board of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

28 March 2022
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To the Shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 119 to 275, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables

e |mpairment assessment of goodwill
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables

EEE 5 ENRIENEERE
Refer to notes 2, 3, 4 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
were RMB5,723 million for which a loss allowance of RMB546 million was
provided.

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade receivables on a
periodical basis. Loss allowances for trade receivables are calculated based
on management’s estimates of the lifetime expected credit losses, which is
determined by taking into account: a) the customers’ repayment history, aging
profile of their overdue balances, their current financial positions and other
relevant circumstances; and b) forecasts of future economic conditions.

We identified the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the expected credit loss is subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the expected credit loss
is considered significant due to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of
significant assumptions used, and the significant judgements and estimates
involved in the process.

BRRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET NAEEERENSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment when determining the loss
allowance for trade receivables:

We obtained an understanding of, evaluated and
tested management’s key controls which management
adopted for the determination of loss allowance for trade
receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

We assessed the reasonableness of management’s 10ss
allowance estimates by examining the information used
by management to form such judgements and estimates,
including:

i) Evaluated the customer’s repayment history by
checking the settlement evidence of the trade
receivables to cash receipt and testing the aging
profile of trade receivables to sales invoices and other
relevant documents, on a sample basis;

ii)  On customers having a higher risk of default:

e Understood management’s process in
identifying customers having a higher risk of
default;

e (Obtained and reviewed those customers’
background information and their current
financial position provided by management;

e Reviewed transactions with those customers
and their respective collection patterns in the
past, and discussed with management to
understand the circumstances applicable to
relevant customers; and

iy Evaluated whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information by making
reference to market data.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
the loss allowance for trade receivables in the context of
the applicable financial reporting framework.

We also considered whether the judgements made in
selecting the models, significant assumptions and data
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the risk
assessment of determination of loss allowance for trade
receivables remained appropriate and we found the judgement
and estimates adopted by management in determining the
determination of loss allowance for trade receivables are
supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
BREHSEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill
BAEREE

Refer to notes 2, 4, and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s goodwill amounted to RMB413 million,
against which a provision of RMB79 million was made to certain cash
generating units (“CGUs”).

Goodwill was being allocated to CGUs for the goodwill impairment assessment.
Management has engaged external valuers to assist with the annual impairment
assessment. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined based on
the value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections, which involved using
key assumptions such as annual revenue growth rate, gross profit rate, and
discount rate.

We focused on this area due to (a) the magnitude of the carrying amount
of goodwill; and (b) the estimation of recoverable amount is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill is considered significant due to the complexity of the
models, subjectivity of significant assumptions used, and significant judgements
involved in the goodwill impairment assessment process.

BRRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTNARERRETEE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s impairment assessments of goodwill:

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of the goodwill to assess the effectiveness of the
management’s estimation process.

We evaluated and tested the key controls over the
impairment of goodwill.

We obtained and reviewed the valuation reports issued
by the external valuers, and evaluated its independence,
competence and objectivity.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation
models and management’s key assumptions used, with
the involvement of our internal valuation experts and
performed the following procedures:

i) Compared the annual revenue growth rate and
gross profit rate with the Group’s historical results
and the Group’s approved business plan, taking into
consideration market trends;

i) Assessed the discount rates used by benchmarking
the discount rates against external market data;

i) Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis around
the key assumptions used, to ascertain the extent
to which adverse changes would result in goodwill
being impaired.

We tested the accuracy of the calculations applied in
the valuation models for the calculation of impairment
provisions.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related
to goodwill impairment in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

We also considered whether the judgements made in
selecting the models, significant assumptions and data
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
risk assessment of goodwill impairment remained appropriate
and management’s judgement in the impairment assessments is
supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
BREHSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2021 (the “annual
report”) other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. We have obtained some of the other information including
chairman’s statement prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining
other information, including Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report
of the Board of Directors and Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2021 and
the other sections to be included in the annual report, is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the annual
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBEaREMAEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2021 2020

20214 20204

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BiaE ARET T AREETTT

(Restated, Note 2.1)

(&E7

BizE2.1)

Revenue WA 5 29,293,527 26,519,393

Cost of sales SHE A 12 (23,055,471) (20,218,738)

Gross profit ER 6,238,056 6,300,655

Other income E g A 7 385,249 262,823

Other gains and losses HbUezss R EsiE 8 (3,575) (393,012

Selling and distribution expenses HE R X 12 (828,126) (790,486)

Administrative expenses THAX 12 (1,284,318) (1,289,831)

Research and development expenses Disig=dz 12 (1,437,960) (1,224,426)

Restructuring costs EARMA 9,12 (210,841) (646,954)
Net impairment losses on financial and ERMEREERERIEFEE

contract assets (16,533) (339

Share of profit of associates it A=YNG vl 22 39,416 12,007

Share of profit of joint ventures JE(LEEBEET 23 5,639 9,617

Finance costs, net BYE R AFEE 10 (263,691) (300,160)

Profit before tax BR B AT A 2,623,316 1,939,894

Income tax expense FriSfiR> 11 (553,448) (561,113)

Profit for the year FREF 2,069,868 1,378,781

Profit for the year attributable to: AT ALEEFERNGF
Owners of the Company ViN/NETI S 1,947,785 1,239,149
Non-controlling interests AR R 122,083 139,632

2,069,868 1,378,781
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mEBREREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR¥T R ARETIT
(Restated, Note 2.1)
(f&=5
FizE2.1)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2 Mk ¢
Items that will not be reclassified TEREEETSIE
subsequently to profit or loss: FEmAIEE -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit EFFrERKENET
obligations 70,562 21,078
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair JA X E(EEHE A @ AHME
value through other comprehensive income HRE=N SR EE N T ES 2,758 (941)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:  FJEE# B E8e b BEH -
Exchange differences arising on translation HMEEERNER Z8 24,524 (119,890)
Cash flow hedging e REHF (12,555) (4,961)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FREMEEmEE(FX) -
for the year,net of income tax HBRATISHL 85,289 (104,714)
Total comprehensive income for the year E£R2HEUKZEAEE 2,155,157 1,274,067
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATELHFAZmIKRELATE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AR AR 2,033,074 1,134,435
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR FE RS 122,083 139,632
2,155,157 1,274,067
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARESD) 16 112.42 71.52
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#HHE(ARES) 16 111.90 71.45




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2021 722021412 531 H

As at 31 December

M2A31H
p174] 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKRE 17 4,843,738 4,641,837
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 1,668,455 1,268,668
Investment properties BEME 19 377,593 387,226
Goodwill EES 20 412,850 520,431
Intangible assets EEE 21 1,176,924 1,513,961
Investments in associates REE N R E 22 171,961 297,460
Investments in joint ventures REETENKRE 23 86,978 81,339
Financial assets at fair value through other AT ETE B EE ST AEM
comprehensive income FHREHNESHEE 24 143,752 28,993
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 25 383,830 429,507
Finance lease receivables & TH & e EOE 26 23,149 15,497
Long-term receivables RHEEW B 27 116,849 165,531
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBIELENEE 1,685 1,922
9,407,764 9,352,372
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion AR EEWRIE - e 26 42,122 122,834
Long-term receivables, current portion RHIEWEE - REE D 27 30,324 156,944
Loans receivable from associates and a joint e NI
venture —HEERENER 29 = 6,500
Inventories FE 30 6,242,407 4,531,794
Trade and other receivables B 5 MEMERGIE 31 7,374,073 6,991,913
Transferred trade receivables BalEnE FrEkEE 36 687,473 830,941
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFTE B EEE
profit or loss FTABGNSREE 24 3,236,286 2,857,305
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFTE B EEE
other comprehensive income SFAEMEERENSREE 24 4,111,050 3,780,065
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIA 24 15,372 40,405
Tax recoverable A Y e A 43,667 34,701
Contract related assets, current portion ARIEBEE  mEED 28 - 8,804
Bank deposits RITIER 32 2,944,102 2,763,289
Cash and cash equivalents HeRASEEY 32 3,195,674 2,978,727
27,922,550 25,104,222
Total assets WEE 37,330,314 34,456,594
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As at 31 December 2021 722021412 531 H

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Borrowings 3= 34 4,630,658 3,624,892
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 1,142,850 690,226
Deferred tax liabilities BT EE 25 246,853 263,567
Contract liabilities ARAE 28 26,528 10,312
Provisions B 35 62,157 136,148
Employee benefit obligations EERFEMR 37 303,261 707,321
Other non-current liabilities HibIEmeh Ak 188,657 161,818
6,600,964 5,594,284
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 N H M EN FRIA 33 9,978,408 8,523,817
Contract liabilities ARAME 28 2,272,366 1,625,444
Income tax liabilities FSfHiasE 132,287 231,896
Borrowings =% 34 1,167,952 974,003
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 103,221 114,980
Redemption liabilities EOaE 45 - 1,420,875
Provisions B 35 687,344 1,092,793
Liabilities associated with transferred HEZENE S
trade receivables R IEE M AaE 36 687,473 830,941
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 24 49,322 13,730
15,078,373 14,828,479
Total liabilities ey =R 21,679,337 20,422,763
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SmEMBRRR
As at 31 December 2021 72021412 A31H

As at 31 December
M2A31H

2021 2020

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARMET T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARF#E

Share capital R A 1,779,493 1,732,471
Share premium f& 10 m B 4,426,102 4,199,421
Reserves G 8,589,896 7,131,903
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RABIICHEEIRERS 14,795,491 13,063,795
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR M e 855,486 970,036
Total equity ERAR 15,650,977 14,033,831
Total equity and liabilities EExRamEeE 37,330,314 34,456,594

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 275 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Jiao Chengyao
DIRECTOR
=

HINRE119E275 B iR A MR 71202293 A28 H
KEFSUERFETE YR TIATREREE

Jia Hao

0

DIRECTOR

EBE
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mEEREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z20214E12 A31 2 (L&

Attributable to owners of the Company
ADRRRER

Statutory ~ Currency  Cash flow Non-
Share Share  Treasury Revaluation  surplus translation  hedging Other  Retained controlling Total
captal ~ premium share  reserve  reserve  rGSVe  ESENVeS  reserves  eamings Total  interests equity

tERE KM ReRE HER
Ba  KhEE BERH ERRE  RE EXRE iR HMER REEW 4% 0 BR  BnfE
RMBOOO  RWBOOD  AMBOOO  RWBOOD  AMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOQD
/ T ARETT ARETR T A ARBTT

At 31 December 2020 and ANENANAR

at 1 January 2021 MEIAIAR 1732411 4199421 - (%394 1023520  (145790) (2168 115203 6176532 13063795 970,03 14,033,831
Proft or the year Efgi| = = = = - - - - 1947785 1947785 122083 2,069,868
Other compefiensiiencome. A EH2ENE(FR)

(expense) for the year - - - T30 - W54 (1255) - - 8520 - 85209

Tota comprefiensive income ER2ENG(FR)8E

(expense) for te year - - - B3 - W54 (1255) - 1947785 2033074 122083 2,155,157
Traer e ) B () - - - - U - - ) - - -
Shere options B 412 26 - - - - -85 - -
Resticted shae incentie scheme TRl R Siat 2l FizEan)

(Note 40) 2300 205067 (48,724 - - - - 19364 - 8007 - 18007
Retum of contrutions fo HEEEREENLE )

State-onned investors (Note ) - - - - - - - (95,000 - (95,000 - (95,000
Disposel o associates (Note 22 HEBE DA HER) - - - - - - - (3756) - (3756) - (3750)
Transaction with non-conroling SRR ER R 2 (BiEEd)

intersts (Note o) - - - - - - - 5692 - 5698 (17846  (120864)
Dicencs (ot 15 B (Hss) - - - - - - - - (REE) (MmN GeTE) (@151

At 31 December 2021 ROIERANA 1779493 4426102 (48724) TG 1198347 (121.266) (14723 161371 7576965 14796491 865,486 15650977
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

Attrbutable fo onnexs of the Company

KATREELS
Satfoy  Cumency  Cashflow Non-
Share Share Revaluation suplus— translaton fieaging Ofter  Retained contoling Tota
captd — premium TBSENR TBSENVR TBSENVR [BSEIVES /esenes  eamings Total interests equiy
RS g% BeiE R
Rt RieE  EREE e EXBE  UPEE  EHEE  REEH & Bn  EafE
RVBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBO0
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT AREfR ARETR AREfn ARETR ARETR
(Note a) (Note ) (Note )
(Kizta) (Wak)  (Hiske)
At Jenuary 2020 RONE1A1A 1732410 4199421 (5531 790994 (25,900 2093 105067 5490416 12239731 902515 13142246
Profit for the year Emgi] - - - - - - - 1200149 1200149 139632 1378761
Otvercomprehensieincome.—~—— ERERAENE(ER)
(expense)forthe year - - 0,137 - (1198%) 491 - - (104714 - (10474
Totd comprehensieincome~— FASENE (%) 28
(expense) for the year - - 0137 - (19890 (4961) - 1239149 113443 13068 1204067
Transfer (ot &) () - - - 5% - - - (25 - - -
Share aptions Bk - - - - - - 101% - 101% - 101%
Contrbution of equity BSLE - - - - - - - - - 2,000 2000
Dividends (Note 15) e (ks) - - - - - - - 05m  Gun EAM) (3461
At 31 December 2020 RANERANE 1732410 4199421 (B304 102850 (145790 (2168 115,203 6176532 130637% 970036 14033831
Note a: In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association Mizka : RIBRERFEUARART REMBRFEKILEH

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
years’ losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of
the Company and these subsidiaries.

The cash flow hedging reserve presents the cumulative effective portion of gains
and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated under
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the
non-financial hedged item.

The other reserves mainly represent the contribution from the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government (“Henan SASAC”), the former ultimate controlling party of the
Company, and was recognised as contribution from the ultimate controlling
party of the Company before 1 January 2021. On 18 January 2021, Henan
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.,the entity under Henan SASAC and one of
investors of the Company, issued a notification to the Company to withdraw the
capital contribution made before, and the Company repaid RMB95,000,000 to
Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd in January 2021.

In 2021, the non-controlling investor divested its interests in Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, which resulted in the decrease of non-controlling interests by
RMB173,898,000. In 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, ASIMCO Shuanghuan
Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd (“ASIMCO Shuanghuan”) acquired 20% shares of
ASM ALLOY MATERIALS (YIZHENG) CO.,LTD, which resulted in the decrease of
non-controlling interests by RMB 3,948,000.

BiEED

PitsEc -

PisEd -

MERRMNARER  ARARZEMBERARFTEH
BREEFBT10%2 X ERMHE - E2RESED
MEAR% L - HIERFEETERLBERERR
BAD KBS RTHETT © 5T B8R 1 I FA 7 0 158 LA AT
FENER BARALEXBAARARRZENE
RAHFEINER

BBt EEHERRSRBEPTLAE T TA
MAFEZSELN KRG REBRFERID - ER
ReneihHEERAR RN TAN R FEZ
PEAMZRENERETHNEBZEBRRERHS
BEMOBERRD  AFAEMBEIPIEE R E
ZA e

HiFEEBEESEARFANSRIES T THE ARBF
HEEEEEEBEZE8([THEAREZ])NLEE -
WA2021F1 A1 B AT HER A AR B Al S35 51 75 M
& o pR20215F1 A18H - MBI EEBERE
FRRIHEAREZE THNERBRARRRESEZ
—)AARARELHELAAREDEQBAD - MR
202141 A+ NARIFDA AR EERESEBRET
A REMEE ARE95,000,0007T °

R20214F » JEE RS B 3 B I8 H A B0 B AR M RR A
BRAR(REEHBAR)  BHIEHERERR DA
R #173,898,0007T ° 720214 » ANEEWE A REILE
FREREERARAR([EHMEER ) WEE B
AR (EIE) BRAR20%KN - EBEHERERR
L AR #3,948,0007T ©

125



126

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2021

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETE
Profit before tax MREL AR A 2,623,316 1,939,894
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Finance costs LA KA 263,691 300,160
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITER - REEBFEKRE
receivables and finance lease receivables TAE REYGRIERNF B IA (130,724) (88,811)
Share of profit of associates FE(G BN R A (39,416) (12,007)
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(E BB ST (5,639) 9,617)
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, HEDE - HELREDN
plant and equipment CaF)/BiE (11,598) 19,756
Gain on disposal of associates HE B &N A s (56,596) -
Gain on disposal of loans receivable from HERIE L AT REEDEERN
associates and a joint venture Iz (22,550) -
Dividend from financial assets at fair value A ERTE BB AELM
through other comprehensive income 2HWRENSMEEMGRE (3,719) (2,022)
Dividend from financial assets at fair value AT ERTE B EZ T ABEW
through profit and loss CREEMBRE (240) -
Net fair value gain of derivative TESRT AN FERZFE
financial instruments (5,069) (2,107)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WENREITE 671,359 716,105
Depreciation of investment properties EMEITE 11,682 9,493
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ESE 239,999 234,916
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREAETE 155,729 158,275
Provision for net impairment losses on SRNEREERERISFEER
financial and contract assets 16,533 339
Impairment of property, plant and equipment M WENMEERE 1,732 109,987
Impairment of goodwill EERE 78,935 164,714
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 83,739 30,049
Share options A A A 8,578 10,136
Restricted share incentive scheme (Note 40) PR i) 14 A% 22 e B AT 2 (B 3E40) 79,364 -
Accrual of inventory provision FEstTEERUE 24,775 23,763
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes P S By o2 31,086 133,828
Operating cash flows before movements HEECEPAMNEERSRE
in working capital 4,104,967 3,736,851
Increase in inventories FEEN (1,727,594) (921,111)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & B fth e R IE I N (316,786) (2,034,082)
(Increase)/decrease in notes receivable AESAC=H DS (305,952) 397,927
Decrease in long-term receivables and RARE YR IE K Bh & T & PR R IE R
finance lease receivables 257,166 113,023
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H A FE S R IEIE A0 533,681 1,419,291
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities ARAaEEN Cd) 663,138 (63,579)
Cash generated from operations RS IR SIN & 3,118,620 2,648,320
Income tax paid BFEHR (624,094) (524,913)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING KETEBRESTFHE
ACTIVITIES 2,494,526 2,123,407
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December
BZ12ANBLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARMET T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITER - REERGERRE

receivables and finance lease receivables THE EWEIERF EHA 130,724 88,811
Government grants related to assets received B E A A U A B 43,658 46,308
Dividends from financial assets at fair value through AR F(EEHE B2 8)Et A2 EWEH

other comprehensive income SREEMRE 3,719 2,022
Dividends from financial assets at fair value through AR F(EEHE B @B ABER

profit and loss SREEMSIRE 240 -
Proceeds on disposal of associates (Note 22) HE RN BIFTS A (HT3E22) 131,654 64,057
Payments on purchase of financial assets at fair value B & LAA E(EEH2 B HEH)

through profit and loss AFABTENESBMEENTR = (112,000)
Proceeds on disposal of derivative HEMTESRT EFSHIE

financial instruments (12,555) (4,961)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BELRESHE

plant and equipment 27,323 41,733
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELEE (1,032,547) (1,020,670)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHMER EE (91,992) (261,248
Payments for structured deposits S SR (3,234,990 (2,744,009
Proceeds from structured deposits BT RAERE 2,744,009 1,393,000
Repayment of loans receivable from associates and ~ FEUESE AR KA S DEERMNIER

joint venture 29,050 10,000
Repayment of contributions to non-controlling interests (&8 ¥IEIERR iR EE (120,864) -
Payments for capital contribution to an associate TREBERFMEE (1,000) -
Contribution from non-controlling interests IERERHE = 2,000
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity FRREIEAA =& B A EMIRTTE R K

over three months and restricted cash ZRRFIRE (2,569,828) (1,789,743)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity REUREEA B =8 A A ERIRTTIF 3K

over three months 1,789,743 31,270
Payment of pledged bank deposits TREEPRITER (374,274) (973,546)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B HIRRITFR 973,546 826,871
Net settlement amount of derivative financial PTESB T AN EEEFE

instruments 5,069 54,572

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHFFARESFEE (1,559,315) (4,345,533)
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Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Proceeds received from the equipment leasing BB E R RIS IE
companies - 813,973
Proceeds from new borrowings raised SESEEMSHIE 2,399,132 1,961,622
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1TE AR P15 5E 26,336 -
Proceeds from restricted share incentive scheme PR 1) 1 AR S BB 5T &1 P 5 5R0E
(Note 40) (fg7E40) 247,367 -
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (945,000) (661,439)
Interests paid BERFIE (228,708) (152,093)
Repayment of redemption liabilities BEERNEE (1,425,868) -
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders ERNAQARREREE (372,525) (320,507)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests EAT IR A S AR B (58,787) (74111)
Repayment of contributions to BRHEAREENHE
State-owned investors (95,000) -
Principal elements of lease payments HEFEMNAS IS (153,498) (163,963)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM REEE (FTA), s
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Note 46) IR &R FA (fEE46) (606,551) 1,503,382
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH R&RIREZEYWZI, G ) BE
EQUIVALENTS 328,660 (718,744)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES EREHNTLE (111,713) (165,964)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY MABIENBRESRESEEY 2,978,727 3,863,435
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER AM12A31BEHRERAEZEEY
represented by cash and cash equivalents (Note 32)  #53& RIS ZEEW(:E32) 3,195,674 2,978,727
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e MR

General information

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise in the
PRC. On 28 October 2015, 32.14% of the Company’s total issued share
capital held by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”)
were transferred to Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Henan SASAC. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, upon completion of the share transfer, the parent of
the Company was Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. and its
ultimate controlling party was Henan SASAC of the PRC Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 00564) on 5 December 2012.

On 9 March 2017, the Company issued 93,220,338 ordinary shares
to ASIMCO (China) Limited. On 22 March 2017, the Company issued
18,129,032 ordinary shares to Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited — the first phase of ESOP, Bridge Trust Co., Ltd., Jinxiu
Zhonghe (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd. — Jinxiu Tianyou No. 106
Private Investment Fund, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— HANG TANG WEALTH, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— No. 2 Wealth Management Plan of Tianhong Dashu Dingzenghao and
Anhui Railway Development Funds Co., Ltd. After the issuance, Henan
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. held 30.08% of the Company’s total
issued share capital.

On 26 February 2021, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
transferred 277,195,419 A shares of the Company to Hong Yi Investment
Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Hong Yi
Investment”). After the transfer, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. holds 243,892,381 shares of the Company (representing 14.08%
of the total share capital of the Company), and Hong Yi Investment holds
277,195,419 shares of the Company, representing 16% of the total
share capital of the Company. While Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“Henan Asset”), the party acting in concert with Hong Yi Investment, holds
69,209,157 shares of the Company, representing 3.99% of the total share
capital of the Company, Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset held 19.99%
of shares of the Company in aggregate. According to the Acting-in-Concert
Agreement entered into by Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset and the
governance structure of Hong Yi Investment, Hong Yi Investment and
Henan Asset have become the controlling shareholders of the Company,
and the Company has no de facto controller.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z=2021F12 A31 B I F/E

1

—RER

BN S ERR D BR AR ([ AAR )RR E
ARZEFE ([FRE ) B 7 1> 5 501 HE B Ak 5 ()
EREEAREAE - BIEPEAQFNER2008512
R28B B AR ABRAT - 12015104
288 HAMEARBNEAEELEEERLZES
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R ERTTE - AR RIEA RA R AR
WELEEBREFTRR - H&E&EHIH 2 BB
ETHIEEREZ -

7201058 A3H + A2 B]5EAK 140,000,000 AR 7E
FEBHERGIERARBEET L™ (D RSE
601717.8S)  N'AAIFR20125F 12 ASHEF BB A
RHEERABN([EEZAT]) ER (DR
00564)

201783 A9H » AR EAEFE(FE)IEEFR
A B1857793,220,338 % i@ A% - 2017437228 -
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MAEALF)EAEEBR AR —8F RME1065RFLE5
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A 1930.08% °

M20215F2 A26 8 - MM EERESEEGREA
ARRABMRIEEEECIM) AR LE(ERA
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1

General information (continued)

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a
restricted share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”) to grant and issue
a total number of 42,300,000 A shares. After the completion of the
grant registration of the restricted shares under the Scheme, the total
share capital of the Company increased from 1,732,471,370 Shares to
1,774,771,370 Shares. As a result, the aggregate shareholding of Hong Yi
Investment and Henan Asset Management Limited has been changed from
19.99% to 19.52%.

On 18 December 2021, the first vesting period of the share options
granted under the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme was due, and 301
participants with number of 4,722,300 shares were eligible for option
exercise in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Option Incentive
Scheme (Note 39). After the completion of the exercise of share options,
the total share capital of the Company increased from 1,774,771,370
Shares to 1,779,493,670. As a result, the aggregate shareholding of Hong
Yi Investment and Henan Asset Management Limited has been changed
from 19.52% to 19.47%.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in manufacturing of coal mining machinery
and auto parts.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with IFRSs

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies ordinance Cap. 622.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4 below.

—RER @

20216F6 48 + AEBRERFASEHM—IER
HI MR B AT B ([3%5T81)) - AR TFREITE
$£42,300,0000% AR A% (7 © 3% FTBITE T HIBR Hi) 1 AR 32
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AR 38 221,774,771,3700 fx 0 » FH L - BARIE K&
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) — measured at fair value, and

e (defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at
fair value.

New standards, amendments and interpretation adopted
by the Group in 2021

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2021:

e |Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 — amendments
to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments
early:

e (Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The standards, amendments and interpretation listed above
are either currently not relevant to the Group or had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Impact of new standard and amendments issued but not
yet adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standard and amendments have
been published but are not mandatory for 31 December 2021
reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These new standards, amendments or interpretations are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements when they become effective.

IIV_\/EI\/E\ZI-ﬁ%iﬁ'IH—% M;J-%I
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(v) Changes in accounting policies

The Group reclassified certain transportation costs, which
are part of the contract fulfilment costs incurred before the
control of the goods transferred to the customers, from “selling
expenses” into “cost of sales”. The Group considered that the
changes would result in @ more appropriate presentation of the
Group’s transactions in the financial statements and provide
more relevant information.

The changes in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively and comparative figures have been reclassified
accordingly. It leads to the reclassification of RMB373,206,000
from “selling expenses” into “cost of sales” in the reporting
period and of RMB344,705,000 from “selling expenses” into
“cost of sales” in 2020 annual financial report disclosed.

2.2 The principal accounting policies
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

)

©

@

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

e B ERRME
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

@

)

Equity accounting (Continued)

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in
“Impairment of non-financial assets” below.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (continued) 22 TESEBUR @)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
e iabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss. Amounts classified as equity is not re-measured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognized in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &, Z=2021F12 A31 B I F /=

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM"). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as executive directors of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

@

()

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the historical financial information of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency
is RMB as its key activities and transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group’s presentation currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis
within “other gains and losses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or l0ss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Foreign currency translation (Continued) SR E ()
(©)  Group companies © FEA

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognized in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified into profit or
loss, as part of “other gain and losses”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%
Plant and machinery 9.00%-18.00%
Motor vehicles 18.00%-19.00%
Other equipment 18.00%-19.00%

Property, plant and equipment arising from business acquisition is
depreciated over the remaining useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, and are recognized in “Other gains and losses”
in the profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking
into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right 2%

Buildings

2.71%-3.17%

Intangible assets

@

)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the aggregate purchase consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes at the operating segments.

Trademarks, patents and customer relationship

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks, patents and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

() Development cost

Costs associated with project development are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following criteria are met:

e it istechnically feasible to complete the technology so that
it will be available for use

e management intends to complete the technology and use
or sell it

e there is an ability to use or sell the technology

e it can be demonstrated how the technology will generate
probable future economic benefits

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
technology are available, and

e the expenditure attributable to the technology during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
technology include employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as development
costs in intangible assets and would be transferred to completed
development projects or patents, and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use over its estimated use life.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z=2021F12 A31 B I F/E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEFFTEKR@®)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(d)  Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do
not meet the criteria in () above are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

(e)  Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following period:

Trademark 10 years
Software 4-5 years
Development costs 4 years
Patent right 5-10 years
Customer relationship 10 years

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets
such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-
down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group)
are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the statement of financial position. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from other liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FTESTHEREHEw)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESFTEOR (#)

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been
disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of
business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, development cost not yet ready for use and intangible assets
that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets
(@)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or

loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

@

)

©

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(OCI). For investments in debt instruments, this will depend
on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(Fvoal).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flow from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
() Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains and losses together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the profit or loss.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through QOCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains and losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains
and losses and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the profit or loss.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains and losses in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

©

@

Measurement (Continuea)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at FVPL
are recognised in other gains and losses in profit or loss as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Group has certain types of financial assets that are subject
to IFRS 9’s ECL model. Please refer to Note 3 for details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FTESTHEREHEw)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESFTEOR (#)

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either:

e hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a
firm commitment (fair value hedges), or

e hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of
recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the economic
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of
hedged items. The Group documents its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated in hedge
relationships are disclosed in Note 24. Movements in the hedging
reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in Note 24. The full fair
value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

STIBUER (#)
AT EREWEE (&)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 T E®
Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

(@)  Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting @) FTEHFEEEENE L TEE W

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss within other gains and losses.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the options as
the hedging instrument. The Group classified foreign currency
options and commodity option as held-for-trading derivatives
and accounted for them at FVPL.

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change
in intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash flow
hedge reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of
the options that relate to the hedged item (‘aligned time value’)
are recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity.

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast
transactions, the Group generally designates only the change in
fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component
as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the
effective portion of the change in the spot component of the
forward contracts are recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve
within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract
that relates to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) is
recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity. In some cases, the Group may designate the full change
in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points)
as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains or losses
relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the
entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve within equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

@

()

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued)

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or l0ss, as follows:

e \Where the hedged item subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory),
both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the
deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred
forward points, if any, are included within the initial cost of
the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised
in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for
example through cost of sales).

e The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the
interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in profit or loss within finance cost at the same
time as the interest expense on the hedged borrowings.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred
costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the recognition
of a non-financial asset such as inventory. When the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in
equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss and are included in
other gains and losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)
2.2 The principal accounting policies (continued) 22 TESEBUR @)
Inventories 7E
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. FRIRR A R A 23R FHENRIEEFER - A

Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within a year and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 31 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 3 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is
not due 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Gurrent and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the income tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

@

)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of
statement of financial position in the areas where the Company,
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of statement of financial position and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Gurrent and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
joint ventures and associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from
the joint ventures and associates’ undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits provided in various forms of consideration in
exchange for service rendered by employees or compensations for
the termination of employment relationship.

@

)

Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits include employee wages or
salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury
insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, short-
term paid absences, labour union running costs and employee
education costs, etc. The short-term employee benefit liabilities
are recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to the
profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes, including both
defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group’s legal or constructive obligation for the plan is limited to
the contributions.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Pension obligations (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the profit or loss in employee benefit expense, except where
included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the profit or
loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

©

@

®

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide other post-retirement benefits
to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting methodology
as used for defined benefit pension plans. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
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Employee benefits (Continued)
() Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the date of statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(9) Share-based payments — expense recognition and grant date

Share-based payment expenses should be recognised over
the period during which the employees provide the relevant
services. This period may commence prior to the grant date. In
this situation, the entity estimates the grant date fair value of the
equity instruments for the purposes of recognising the services
received during the period between service commencement
date and grant date. Once the grant date has been established,
the entity revises the earlier estimate so that the amounts
recognised for services received is ultimately based on the grant
date fair value of the equity instruments.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via
the A share Option Incentive Scheme (the “Employee Option Plan”),
the executive short-term incentive scheme and share appreciation.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in Note 39 and Note
40.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (e.g. the entity’s
share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the
requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a specific
period of time).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Employee options (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The Employee Option Plan is administered by Employee Share Trust,
which is consolidated in accordance with the principles in “Principles
of consolidation and equity accounting (a) Subsidiaries”. When the
options are exercised, the trust transfers the appropriate number
of shares to employee. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited directly to equity.

Restricted share incentive scheme

Under the restricted share incentive scheme, shares are issued by
the Company to the selected employees on the grant date.

The total amount to be expensed which is determined by reference
to the fair value of the granted restricted shares as of the grant date
less the proceeds received from the grant, is amortised to profit or
loss over the relevant service period being the vesting period of the
shares, and recorded under other reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company. The proceeds received from the grant are
treated as capital contribution wholly belonging to the participants.
The proceeds received from the grant are firstly recorded under
treasury shares and other payables until each unlocking date when
the relevant vesting conditions are satisfied.

The number of shares expected to vest is estimated based on the
non-market vesting conditions. The estimates are revised at the end
of each reporting period and adjustments are recognised in profit or
loss and other reserves.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Provision

Provisions for warranty are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

The Group recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace for
assurance type — warranty. This provision is calculated based on
historical experience of the level of repairs and replacements.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

If an entity has an onerous contract (the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it), the present obligation under the
contract is recognised as a provision.

A restructuring provision is recognised only when the general
recognition criteria for provision are met. The obligation for a
restructuring is often constructive. A constructive restructuring
obligation arises only when there is: (a) a detailed formal plan
identifying the main features of the restructuring; and (b) a valid
expectation in those affected that the entity will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its
main features to those affected.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Provision (Continued)

A restructuring plan does not create a present obligation at the date
of statement of financial position if it is announced after that date,
even if it is announced before the financial statements are approved.
A sale or termination of a business might fall under the definition of
a restructuring. No obligation arises in respect of restructuring costs
associated with the sale of an operation until the entity is committed
to the sale (that is, there is a binding sale agreement).

Restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not those associated with the entity’s
ongoing activities. Any expected gains on the sale of assets are not
considered in measuring a restructuring provision.

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sale of coal mining machinery, spare parts, auto
parts and rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group also assesses its role as an agent or principal for each
transaction and in an agency arrangement the amounts collected
on behalf of the principal are excluded from revenue. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each
of the activities, as described below.

Sales of products

The Group manufactures and sells a range of coal mining machineries
and auto parts to its customers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied. The retention receivables which will be settled by
customers after warranty period, is included in trade receivables.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a separate
performance obligation in a single contract as the warranty service is
assurance type, and the Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision, see
Note 35.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FTESTHEREHEw)

As the transportation and handling activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they are not separate
performance obligation, therefore, related costs are fulfilment costs
which are recognised as assets. The assets are amortised on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or service to which the assets relate. Due to the short
period of transportation, related assets are not material at the date of
the statement of financial position.

Significant financing component

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Normally, the collection period would be from 3 to 5 years.

Rendering of service

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. The service provided by
the Group is mainly related to the service for repairing service.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires the
presentation of any unconditional rights to consideration as a
receivable separately from contract assets. The Group has therefore
reclassified its contract assets and contact liabilities upon adoption of
IFRS 15.

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 TEETHEE @)
Revenue recognition (Continued) g A TSR ()
Transportation and handling cost EE SR
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers (Continued)

Contract liabilities are recognised as follows:

e  Contract liabilities recognised in relation to advance received
from customers for non-cancellable contracts.

e  (ontract liabilities recognised in relation to Research and
Development (“R&D”) reimbursements — The Group recognises
the related reimbursement payment from customer as contract
liabilities and recognises the amount as revenue over the
expected production to customer in future period. The related
R&D costs are capitalised as contract fulfilment cost and
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis consistent with
the pattern of the transfer of the products under production to
the customer as part of cost of sales. Any R&D cost which is not
recoverable or when related production is not proceeded by the
customer is written off to profit or loss directly. There is no cost
written off during the year.

The Group also has the contract related assets, recognised in
relation to nomination fee. Nomination fee represents the fee
paid by the Group to the customers to participate in the tendering
process, and the fee is not refundable once the customer’s contract
is secured. Such payment to customer is capitalised as an asset
and subsequently amortised to deduct against the revenue over the
contract life.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FTESTHEREHEw)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESFTEOR (#)

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income is presented as other income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions. If the grant is in the form
of monetary assets, it is measured by the amount received or
receivable.

Government grants are obtained free from the government in the
form of monetary assets, including tax refunds and/or financial
subsidies.

Government grants related to assets are government grants which
are obtained by the enterprise for the construction or formation
of other long-term assets. Government grants related to income
refer to the grants other than those related to assets. Government
grants related to assets are recognised as deferred income, equally
recorded in profit or loss of corresponding period over the life of the
relevant assets.

Government grants related to income used as compensation for
business expenses or losses in subsequent periods, are recognised
as deferred income, and recorded in profit or loss when the expenses
are recognised; those obtained as compensation for business
expenses or losses that have occurred are recorded directly in current
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

HE

HERNHEEEAHAKEERE AR RE
REEERBRARE -

ERAIEEEHERIFAEEKE D - KEE
RIBEERIFEEARAD Eﬁ*ﬁﬂgﬁi{ﬁ%
Hﬂ‘ RRESEEEE &#Tﬂ‘fﬁﬁﬁﬁz*ﬂ

C MARERAEE AN EREN S K%
@%Eﬁﬁ SN IFHE @W% TARRRE—TH
SHEKED - LEARERD

HERFIREBEELER R R B2 ZRBE RGN
Rfett - BRHEBARENREEETHERE
@i HEBETEIERE LR - HEE
ETRRAREEER -

HEMEAMEEN BB SRR EEERT
B - HERERRATHESHIENFHRE

o BEEMNK(BEEEREENZBEREK
HEEE

o EMNEBEN RIS A REMRERK
MR LT 2N #HETR

o FIHREERERTAEEAREN KA

o FAEBEAREEITRBERERNZER

REMTTRME - I

o HHRMASETHZERESABRL
HEREIRK -

RIBETRIBEMEERELOEERATRE
FFARGRE -



164

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB|RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received

e yuses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has
a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that
rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #; = 2021412 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHBREBE @)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (ontinued) 22 FEZFTER #)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is amortised over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit
attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders, where
appropriate.
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3 Financial risk factors 3 sREREE
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MEE  AXFEFEEEZEHFT AL ME AN
MEREE  BERERYKSTUR - REBYEUR -

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include loans receivable
from associates and joint ventures, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, finance lease receivables, long-term receivables, debt investment,

trade and other receivables, derivative instruments, bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, borrowings, redemption
liabilities, transferred trade receivables and liabilities associated with
transferred trade receivables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
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ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@) Market risk (@) iRk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest rate AEFMERFEEFBAITEERR - FIXE
risk, liquidity risk and price risk. There has been no change in the fr - mEBEERERERRR - NEEAZH
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages ZERKBNEERFTERRM BT -
and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk iy E¥RK
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign REERERREMER - WERXZEIED

N

exchange risk arising from various non-functional currencies. BE BTSRRI INERBS o JNERMR B B &
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial HEXS  EHAEEREBEES -
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.
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The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is
primarily with respect to non-functional currency bank balances,
receivables, borrowings and payables (collectively “Non-
Functional Currency ltems”).
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Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging certain foreign currency exposure by using
foreign exchange forward contracts when the need arises.

REREHR - NEESENREEBIAR K
BREEWNT -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s Non-Functional Currency
[tems at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

31 December 20